Creekside Homeowners Association

c/o Cornerstone Community Management

1800 Hamilton Avenue #210 San Jose, California 95125-5635
{408) 448-3080

2017 Annual Budget & Annual Disclosures

November 2, 2016

Dear Homeowner;

The Board of Directors is pleased to provide you with a copy of the 2017 Budget and relevant
documents and disclosures in accordance with applicable California Civil Code:

The budget calls for the monthly assessments to increase from $240.00 per unit per month to
$245.00 per unit per month. The budget reflects the efforts of the Board of Directors to maintain
and enhance the quality of life, while keeping the expenditures in line with today’s current costs.

At this time the Board of Directors does not anticipate a Special Assessment, and the association
does not have any outstanding loans.

The budget takes effect on January 1, 2017. Shortly, you will be receiving a coupon bock for the
new fiscal year. For those owners on the monthly Auto Pay program, it will continue
automatically and you will not receive a coupon booklet. For those owners who generate or use
an online bill pay service, you will need to change the monthly amount.

If you have any questions or concerns regarding this letter or the enclosed budget, please plan to

attend the next Board meeting., Interim questions may be addressed to the Board of Directors or
your Association Manager, Tanya Ruiz, at Cornerstone Community Management, manager’s

email address tanya@cornerstonemgt.biz

Sincerely,

The Board of Directors
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Creekside of San Jose Homeowners’ Association
¢/o Cornerstone Community Management
1800 Hamilton Avenue, Suite 210
San Jose, California 95125-5635

September, 2016
Dear Homeowner,

Living in a planned community development offers many advantages. An attractive appearance
of the units, harmonious relations with your neighbors, and property values are all important
qualities needed in your community. In this regard, the Association is operated pursuant to the
governing documents, which include the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions,
Bylaws, rules and regulations, and policies of the Association as adopted from time to time by
the Board of Directors to implement these goals and restrictions.

Pursuant to the California Civil Code and other applicable law, the following notices and
disclosures are provided:

1. Pro Forma Operating Budget. Civil Code Section 5300(b)(1).
A pro forma operating budget, showing the estimated revenue and expenses on an accrual basis.

This disclosure statement is being distributed to you together with a copy of the pro forma
operating budget which is attached as Exhibit “A”. The pro forma operating budget includes an
estimate of the revenue and expenses of the Association on an accrual basis.

2. Summary of Association Reserves. Civil Code Section 5300(b)(2).

A summary of the association’s reserves, prepared pursuant to Section 5565 is attached as
Exhibit “B”. It is based upon the most recent review or study concerning the major components,
which the Association is obligated to repair, replace, restore or maintain.

The Association’s most recent reserve study was completed in 2016, The most recent physical
reserve study inspection was completed in 2014.

3. Reserve Funding Plan. Civil Code Section 5300(b)(3).

A summary of the reserve funding plan adopted by the board, as specified in paragraph (5) of
subdivision (b) of Section 5550 is attached as Exhibit “C”. The full reserve study plan is
available upon request, and the Association shall provide the full reserve plan to any member
upon request. Please see cover sheet for instructions.

The reserve account funding is reviewed on an annual basis by the Board of Directors and is
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expectancy for repair or replacement of each major component. For the current year, the Board
has elected to analyze the reserve account requirements with both the “cash flow” and “straight
line” methods. The reserve funding process involves estimates of component maintenance,
repair and replacement costs and estimates of the remaining life of the components. Reserve
funding requirements can change over time based upon revised estimated and evaluations.

4. Major Component Repairs. Civil Code Section 5300(b)(4).

The Board has not determined to defer or not undertake repairs or replacement of any major
component with a remaining life of thirty (30) years or less.

5. Special Assessment. Civil Code Section 5300(b)(5).

The Board does not anticipate that the levy of one or more special assessments will be required
to repair, replace, or restore any major component or to provide adequate reserves therefore.

6. Reserve Funding Mechanism. Civil Code Section 5300(b)(6).

At this time, the Board plans to fund reserves to repair or replace major components from
assessments only, not by borrowing, use of other assets, deferral of selected replacements or
~ repairs, or alternative mechanisms.

7. Procedures for Calculation of Reserves. Civil Code Section 5300(b)(7).

The reserve account funding is reviewed on an annual basis by the Board of Directors and is
adjusted by the rate of inflation, construction cost variations, and updated evaluations of the life
expectancy for repair or replacement of each major component. For the current year, the Board
has elected to analyze the reserve account requirements using both the “cash flow” and “straight
line” methods. The reserve funding process involves estimates of component maintenance,
repair and replacement costs and estimates of the remaining life of the components. Reserve
funding requirements can change over time based upon revised estimates and evaluations.

Please See Exhibit “B”.
8. Outstanding Loans. Civil Code Section 5300(b)(8).
The Association has no outstanding loans at this time.

9, Insurance Summary. Civil Code Section 5300(b)(9).

A summary of the Association’s property, general liability, earthq{iake, flood, and fidelity
insurance policies is attached as Exhibit “D”.




“This summary of the association’s policies of insurance provides
only certain information, as required by Section 5300 of the Civil
Code, and should not be considered a substitute for the complete
policy terms and conditions contained in the actval policies of
insurance. Any association member may, upon request and
provision of reasonable notice, review the association’s insurance
policies and, upon request and payment of reasonable duplication
charges, obtain copies of those policies. Although the association
maintains the policies of insurance specified in this summary, the
association’s policies of insurance may not cover your property,
including personal property or real property improvements to or
around your dwelling, or personal injuries or other losses that
occur within or around your dwelling. Even if a loss is covered,
you may nevertheless be responsible for paying all or a portion of
any deductible that applies. Association members should consult
with their individual insurance broker or agent for appropriate
additional coverage.”

O:\Users\Budget Disclosures\Creekside SJ 2014 budget.doc




CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

BUDGET Exibit A
FISCAL YEAR 2017 UNITS 148
MONTH | MONTHLY | ANNUAL | LAST YEAR
ITEM PER UNIT| TOTAL TOTAL MONTHLY
REVENUE :
Assessments 24500  36,260.00  435,120.00 35,520.00
24500  36,260.00  435,120.00 35,520.00
EXPENSES - GROUNDS & FACILITIES
70021 Landscape Add'ls 0.24 35.00 420.00 50.00
70069 Maintenance & Repairs 1.35 200.00 2,400.00 250.00
70028 Maintenance - Backflow 0.20 29.00 348.00 29,00
75008 Maintenance - Contract (Trash, etc.) 3.04 450.00 5,400.00 450.00
70065 Maintenance - Garbage-extras 0.51 75.00 900.00 67.00
70041 Maintenance - Graffiti 0.10 15.00 180.00 17.00
70042 Maintenance - Gutter 1.89 280.00 3,360.00 280.00
70044 Maintenance - Irrigation 1.25 185.00 2,220.00 200.00
70045 Maintenance - Lighting 0.95 140.00 1,680.00 150.00
70047 Maintenance - Plumbing 0.95 140.C0 1,680.00 140.00
70052 Maintenance - Roof 0.14 20.00 240.00 25.00
70066 Maintenance - Tree 0.34 50.00 600.00 43.00
70077 Pest Control 1.72 255.00 3,060.00 255.00
70084 Pool/Spa Additional Supplies 1.35 200.00 2,400.00 150.00
76001 Reserve Contribution 97.77 14,470.00 173,640.00 13,781.00
75006 Landscape Contract 31.32 4,635.00 55,620.00 4,635.00
75015 Pool/Spa Contract 2.69 358.00 4,776.00 398.00
77005 Electricity 473 700.00 8,400.00 700.00
77014 Gas 0.06 9.00 108.00 9.00
77020 Water & Sewer 13.51 2,000.00 24,000.00 2,232.00
SUB TOTAL 164.09 2428600  291,432.00 23,861.00
EXPENSES - GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
80008 Audit & Tax Preparation 1.11 165.00 1,980.00 165.00
80013 Bank charges/fees Q.02 3.00 36.00 3.00
80015 Business Meetings 1.08 160.00 1,920.00 170.00
80030 Insurance 25.34 3,750.00 45,000.00 2,750.00
80031 Insurance - Earthquake 27.87 4,125.00 49,500.00 4,810.00
80033 Insurance - Worker's Comp. 0.30 45.00 540.00 47.00
80035 Legal 0.68 100.00 1,200.00 100.00
80050 Management Fees 19.19 2,840.00 34,080,00 2,840.00
80045 Management Extra fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
80065 Office Expenses 1.01 150.00 1,800.00 140.00
80075 Postage 1.35 200.00 2,400.00 198.00
80076 Printing & Copies 1.35 200.00 2,400.00 200.00
70062 Reserve Study 0.47 70.00 840.00 70.00
80083 Social Fund 0.27 40.00 480.00 40.00
88001 Federal Taxes 0.14 20.00 240.00 20.00
88012 State taxes 0.10 15.00 180.00 15.00
88010 Misc. Taxes & Licenses 0.61 91.04 1,092.00 91.00
SUB TOTAL 8091 11,974.00 143,688.00 11,659.00
TOTAL EXPENSES 24500  36,260.00  435,120.00 35,520.00

CreeksideSJ Bud2Q17




_1.00 . 'RESERVE STUDY SUMMARY ANDDISCLOSURES . |
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2.00 PROCEDURES & METHODOLOGIES

DAVIS-STIRLING ACT PROCEDURES & REQUIREMENTS

Current Davis-Stirling statutes 5300 & 5550 ((old 1365 & 1365.5)) require the Association to Review the Reserve Study
on an annual basis and implement any necessary adjustments regarding component performance, replacement and/or
deferral; as well as recalculation of financial figures based on that review and current financial data. Additionally, Statute
5550 ((old 1365.5)) continues to require a Site Inspection based Update of the complete Study at a minimum every three
years. The Reserve Study is to include:

Identification of the major components.

Establishment of reasonable life expectancies and remaining life of all components.

Projected estimated cost of all repair and replacements.

Development of a 30 year Funding Plan which ideniifies date and amount of regular and special assessments.
Calculation of Percent Funded and amount of per unit deficicncy.

Statement of methodalogy.

Additionally, calculation of 5570 ((old 1365.2.5)) Reserve Summary and Disclosure Document.

SCOPE OF STUDY

The time frame covered by this analysis is from 2017 through 2046, These arc the beginning and ending points for all
repairs and replacements included in the 30 Year Funding Plan included in this study.

STATEMENT OF RESERVE STUDY METHODOLOGY

The components included in this analysis were identified by age, quantity, and type. Upon completion of the component list
and the Reserve Fund Requirement Analysis, the report was presented to the Homeowners Association's Board for approval.
The following sources were used, when applicable, to make our determinations:

Original plans and specifications
_Original contractors, cumrent contractors and vendors

Association maintenance staff

Association management

Association Board of Directors

While gathering this information there were some assumptions made regarding existing conditions, future conditions and
additional circumstances that may occur that would affect the cost of repairs. Some of these assumptions may come true
and others may not; therefore, the cost of repairs and life of certain components could vary substantially. Life expectancies
of all components were based on industry standard experiences, and on. the components being in reasonable and ordinary
condition.

All component conditions were based on visual inspection. There was no disassembly of components or demolition
involved. This report daes not address any factory or product defects or any damage due to improper maintenance, system
design, or installation. It's also assumed all components will receive reasonable maintenance for their remaining life.

Only components that met the following criteria were included in this report:

The component maintenance is the responsibility of the Association.

The component is not covered by the Association's Annual Operating Budget.

The component's useful life is greater than one year, except in the case of variable ongoing repair of a major component
The component has an identifiable expected cost and replacement cost.

Inclusion in the Funding plan requires the component's remaining estimated useful life is less than 30 years.

The Reserve Study includes a 30 year component expenditure projection from which a Funding Plan was developed which
proposes a "schedule of the date and amount of any change in regular or special assessments that would be needed to
sufficiently fund the Reserve Funding Plan," The premise of this replacement cost projection is to ensure a positive cash
balance in the Reserve Fund Account that will enable the Asseciation to fulfill its "obligation for the repair and replacement
of all major components with an expected remaining life of 30 years or less." It is equally important that a positive cash
fund be maintained without relying on Special Assessments or overfunding of Reserves. The cost projections in this report
are inflated based on an "assumed long-term inflation rate™ based on a 30 year average and adjusted for local economies.
The Funding Plan in this report includes an "assumed long-term interest rate” which is not to exceed "2% above the discount
rate published by the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco." Both rates were reviewed in the Preliminary Draft and
approved by the Board of Directors.
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|3.00 : RESERVE STUDY COMPONENT SCI[EDULE & PERCENT FUNDED CALCULATION
Code Compopglt 2016 End
# . Deseription . - _hReq'degnh
100  SIGNAGE ]
1.01 Entry Sign Replacement _§2.0000 2006 25 14 $5,000
1.02 Miscellanecus Sign Replacement Allowance (w/ asphalt) $750) 2013 6 2

September 21, 2016

Pool Sign Replacement

ASPHALT - PRIVATE STREETS & PARKING
Asphalt Sealing

Striping

Asphalt Repairs - Repair/Overlay w/Sealing Project
Asphalt Majer Repalrs & Replacement - 1/3 of Property
Asphalt Major Repairs & Replacement - 1/3 of Property

Sml Weeplng Creek (swancreek to uquirecreek) -50%
Seal - Squirecreek Lane - 50% ~ Shared Cost

Seal - Weeping Creek (squirecreek to marsh manor) 100%
Major RepmrisepIuw—Weepmg Creek (swan to squire.)
Major Repairs/Replace = Sqnireereek Lane

Major Rej aim’R"*lau Weeping Creek {

Sidewalk Entry/Driveways - Ongoing Repair/Replacement
Entries/Drives - Major Replacement Allowance

Pool Decking @ Squire Creek

Pool Decking @ Hollsw Creek

RETAINING WALLS
Wood - SW - Squirecreek Circle-2'
Wood - SW - Squirecreek Clrele - 1'

FENCING

Wood - G.N. - Southern Property Line

Cyclone - G.N. West Property Line - Squirecreek Circle
Jron @ Property Lize

‘Wood Buildieg End Fences Repair Allowance

Iron @ O Pool @ Squire Credt

IRRIGATION & LANDSCAPING & PLUMBING
Irrigation Equipment Replacement Allowance
Landscape Enhancement - Phase 1

Lendscape Enhancement - Phase 2

Landscape Enhancement - Fhase 3

Tree Removal/Replacement Allowance

Squire Creek Sewer Repau'

Light Poles - Parking Lot

Light Pole Fixtures - Parking Lot

Light Poles ~ 8' - Walkway

Light Pole Fixtores ~ "Candy Cane" - Walkway
Pool Area Lighting Upgrade

Entry Sign Lights

Garage Light Replacement

_Area Lighting Upgrade Allowsnce

592 2001
4 2001

15

18,375

$15,000
515,000
$15,000
$10,000
$10,000
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[3.00 RESERVE STUDY COMPONENT SCHEDULE, & PERCENT FUNDED CALCULATION o |

Code - -~ Component I 2016Ena ] sefl[Rmng|  Curréat
. _Description . | 'l'?eq!dzill‘ﬂﬂ_lﬁi'f fe |07 Cost
9.00 SWIMMING POOL - - SQUIRE CREEK o

9.01 Replastering 15 0 $8,550
9.02 Coping 30 15 $3,125
9.03 Tile 30 15 $3,128
9.04 Seal Coping/Walk Joint 10 0 $1,008
9.05 Pool Rails 30 15 $1,200
9.06 Pool Lights 5 $400

Pool Eqmpment Replleement Allowmce
ol Fi

1 SWIMMING POOL ~ HOLLOW CREEK
10.01 - Replasiering

10.02 Coping

1003 Tile

10,04  Seal Coping/Walk Joint
10.05  Pool Rails
PookLights
Pool Equipmeut liep Iaeemeilt A]lowance

Com’pu'sitiun Skingle Ronﬁng
Entry Doors
Area Trells
Area Trellls
Building Repair
_Biildlig Rebuild

4 1999 3 12 3616 $2_1=

il 1979 40 2 $500 $131
J 2005 30 18 8,010 $267|
1990 30 3 34,350 $14
2016 5 4 $1,000 $2001
0 11979 ) »

EQUIPMENT HOUSE @ HOLLOW CREEK

1201  Composition Shingle Roofing ' 9506 1999 30 12
1202  Entry Doors S463f 1979 40 2 $560 $13
1203  Area Trellis Repair/Replace Allowance . 99,075 2005 20 8 $16,500 $825

12,04  Area Metal Benches : Si4920 2000 20 13 $4,974 $2400
fidi g coll 2016

Compnniﬂnn S]ungle Rnuﬁng
Eniry. Dms

1999 30 12 $295882 9,863
1999 30 12 $47,360 $1,579
30 $9,472
] $588

ComposiuonRoof o $16".65
14.02 Gutters -ﬂﬁ,ﬂs
Downspouts - 3 67 1999

Roof, Gutier and Dowmjmut Repair Allowances

$7,500
15.02 Composition Roof 12 $493,060 $16,435]:
15.03  Chimney Caps $71,000 $1,4204
15.04  Spark Arrestors $71,000 $1,420
1305  Gutters $49,016 $1,634||
15,06 Dow 850,67

1600 SITEPAINT N |
1601  Paint All Brildisgs (Based on actual 2011 cost) se2208( 2011 10 4 184411 SISA4L  $110,647]

16.02  Paint - Wood and Metal Touch-up - Mid-Life $149,000] 2006 10 -1 $149,000 $14.900 %0
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_Paint Sound Wall - Interior _

SIDING & TRIM REPLACEMENT
Stucco Repair/Replace w/Paint Cycle

Total Dollars Necessary to be 100% Funded:||
Actoz] Dollars In Reserve Fund|’

Current Per Unit Deficlénzy:f -

Percent Funded:].  61:32%
(Actual dollars/Tatal Dollars Necessary)

STEPS FOR DETERMINING PERCENT FUNDED:
Step 1: Calculate for each component a required contribution on a “straight-line™ funding methodology.
{total component cost divided by the life expectancy of the component)
Step 2: Calculate the required dollars in Reserves for each component.
(reguired anneal contribution multiplied by the component's life in service)
Step 3: Total the required dollars for each component to arrive at "required dellars in bank™.-
Step 4: Divide actual dollars in bank by required dollars in benk to arrive at percent fimded caleulation.

This report includes, but is not limited to*, reserve calculations made using the formula described in section 5570(b)(4) ({(old 1365.2.5(b)(4)}
of the Davis-Stirlinp Act:

4) For the purpose of the report and summary, the amount of reserves necded to be accumulated for a component at a given time shalf be
computed as the current cost of replacement or repair multiplied by the number of years the component has been in service divided by the
useful life of the component. This shall not be consérued to reguire the board to fund reserves in accerdance with this calculation.

* The future funding levels developed in the Finding Plan of this Reserve Study are derived through cash flow fimding calculations.

September 21, 2018 © by Reserve Analysis Contulting, LLC. - REFRODUCTION OF THIS MATERIAL IS PROHIBITED BY LAW
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PROPERTY DESCRIPTION & COMPONENT INCLUSION:

Creckside of San Jose HOA is a 148-member association located in San Jose, CA.

The Association is responsible for 39 residential buildings that were originally built in 1 phase in 1979.
The Association is responsible for all components as the Board of Directors has interpreted the CC&Rs.
For specific component inclusion based on that interpretation please refer to the Component Data

or Schedule Sections.

5300(b)(4) - COMPONENT CONDITION:

The property is composed of a variety of components that are in a range of conditions due to their various
ages and expected lives. The projections in this Reserve Study intend to maintain these components at an
appropriate condition in the future; however, it is the Board's responsibility to investigate and cause the
actual maintenance, repair and replacement projects at the appropriate time(s).

Per Davis-Stirling Section 5500 ((old 1365.5)), on a quarterly basis the Board will review actual reserve
expenses compared to the year's proposed reserve expenses. Depending on each component’s condition

and available information at that time, the Board will determine to undertake repair and replacement projects
as appropriate. Please refer to the Sections of Component Data and/or Component Schedule for specific
details on component ages, expected lives, and remaining lives. A component with a negative remaining life
does not necessarily mean the component is being deferred, but rather signifies that the component is past its
statistically average life and will be reviewed annually until it is appropriate for replacement. If the Board

has specifically determined to defer or not undertake a component's repair or replacement, that decision

and its justification is required to be in meeting minutes and disclosed separately in the Annual Budget Report.

5300(b)(3.5.6.7.8) - FUNDING PLAN ANALYSIS & CALCULATIONS:

5300(b)(3) - "the association shall provide the full reserve study plan upon request.”

Specific Details regarding the following statements can be viewed in the "30 YEAR FUNDING PLAN"
(included with this Reserve Summatry).

5300(b)(5) - If applicable, the amonnt and commencement date of Board determined or anticipated special
assessments will be shown and if a vote of the membership is required.

5300(b)(6) - The mechanism(s) by which the board will fund the reserves, including assessments, borrowing,
and/or use of other assets. Refer to 5300(b)(4) above for deferral/selected repair/replacements.

5300(b)(7) - Procedures & methodology used for these calculations can be found in section "Procedures
& Methodologies” (included with this Reserve Summary),

5300(b)(8) - If applicable, details regarding outstanding loans can be found in the 5570 "Reserve Summary
and Disclosure” (included with this summary) and/or separately in the Annual Budget Report.

The Reserve Study is a SERIES OF PROJECTIONS, and consequently the estimated lives and costs
of components will likely CHANGE OVER TIME depending on a variety of factors such as

future inflation rates, the level of preventative maintenance completed by future boards, unknown
material defects, changes in technology, efficiency, and/or government regnlations.

The Reserve Study is an evolving document that represents a moment in time covering a 30 year period.
As required by The Davis-Stirling Act, we recommend that the Association review and update this
Reserve Analysis on an annual basis to make adjustments for component expenditures and fluctuations
in annual revenue, interest, and inflation,
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E xhibit “C”
(Reserve Funding Plan)

[500 —_30YEAR RESERVE FONDING FLAN ) ]

2016 Average uni¢ per month reserve contribution *1 = $93.11
2016 Total annual reserve contribution *1 = $165,372
* All futirsa sumbers are FROPOSED ani‘or FROJECTED,

DESCRIP’I‘ION ls'l‘ lanARs 2017 2018 2019 202 2021 2022 2623 2024 2025 2026
ojected: ! _1 9925483 | '$858,810 51,011,191 [ §1 075505 81.547,019.] $1,006019] §1,305.923 | $1500,772] $1015AGL | SV.378598
‘Contribution % mcrease over jn'ewom yr. 5.00% 5.00%: 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%, 5.00% 5.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Contribution ave. mnit/month $ increase $4.66 $4.89 $5.13 $5.39 §5.66 35.94 36.24 $6.55 $5.50 35.72
Contribution avg, per urit/month $97.77] $10266| $107.79| SII3.18| $118.34| $124.78| 813102 $137.57| $143.08] $148.80
Contrbbation - Awnual_____|_8173,641 " §183,325 | $191439 { $201,011 | 3211,061 | $228,614 | E2695° 5244330 | 5254103 | 8264367
Doeamcreasereqmmmbersh:pvnte?
Proposed avg, specizl sJE_erunit
pectal Avseismeiit=Total Prope .
Does special assessment require vote?
Income from other sources .
Total Rescrvé Find Available - $1:099.12¢ | §1,041,142 | $1:300,635 $1.276:5161] STASRUST| N1, 315,63% | 1398417 | $1.745,005 | S 0383 | SLDAIRZ
[Projected Expenditures - inflated _$250,690] -$42,175| -$140,120| $44,575] $373,330] -$20,701] -555,792] -$50363] -$212,546] -5247.876
{Balance afier expenditures_ $848,434 | $998,963 | 51,062,500 | $1,231.941 [ $1,084,742 | $1.289,933 | $1.482,624 | $1,694.738 | $1,757.039 | $1,794,936
Intercst on balanoe after tax $10385| $12227] $13005] $15079] $§13277) Sis789 | S$I8147| $20744 | §21.506 1 $21.670
Mininmum requested balance N/A NA N/A| N/A NWA N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Pervent finded (if implemented) *2 60.67%| _ 63.81%| 64.38%| 67.22%| 63.19%] 66.99%|  69.88%|  72.59%|  72.98%|  73.11%
Projected Year g Balance 43 S856.819 | S1.011,191 $1.075.505 | $1.247.019 | $109BO1S | %1.305,722 | $1,500.772] 31715492 | 31,778,545 | $1:616506
S Al ﬁnmumbmmPll.OPoSED OSED and/or FROJECTED, . —_
DESCRIPTION - 2ND 10 YEARS . | . 2027 2028 2029 2030 | 2031 232 | 2033 | M 2035 | 20%
Piojected Hegining Fund Balance=1 1 §13515906 | $1.775,249 | $2.008.930 | $62).882 | S897.510 $508.020 | $534,079 | 813,062 | 5953:052 | $1.240.363
Contribution % increase over previous yr. 400%]  4.00%]  4.00% 400%)  400%]  400%|  4.00%  3.00%]  3.00%|  3.00%
Contribation avg. unit/month § increase $5.95 $6.19 $6.44 $6.70 $6.96 $7.24 $7.53 $5.87 $6.05 $6.23
Contribution 2vg. per unit/month $15475]| $160.94| $16738| $17407] $181.04 | S18838] $19581| $001.68] 8207.73| $213.97
[Reserve Coutrilmtion - Auomal 5274535 8285831, $2972651 $309,185 | $321521 934382 | 347,757 | $358,19 | 3368936 | 8380,004
Does increase require membership vote?
(Proposed avg, special 885635 per unit
H Special Assessment - Total Proposed .
Does special assessment require vote?
Income from othier sources ) ] - )
Total Reserve Fund Available. $2.,041.744 1 $2.061.080 | $2.226,194 | $931.037 1" 31218731 | $842.403 | $B81,837 | $1.171.952 | $T.321957 |- $1.620 367
Projected Expenditures - inflated -$337,961] -$56,684{-51,711831] -$44.677] $716,854] -$314781| -$78,606] -$239,725] -$96,623] -$185,959
Balance after expenditures $1.753.783 | $2.004,396 | $614,363 | $886,361 | $501,877 | $527,621 | $803,231 | $041,527 | $1,225.364 | $1434,407
nterest on balance after tax 521466 | $24534| $7500| $10849| $6143 |  $6458 | $9.832 | $11,524| $14,998 | $17,557
Minimum requested balance N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Percent finded (if implemented) *2 1229%| 75.16%| 45.03%| _S547°[ 4136%|  4386%| 56.50%|  6224%]  7045%|  75.61%
Projected Year EndingBalance 3 SL.775249 | 82028930 | $621,882:] $897.2107) $508,020 1 $534079 ] $B13062| 993,052 $1,240:963 | $1451,965
e Al frture momeberg 15 PROPOSED: ndor PROJECTED, . ]
DESCRIPTION -3RD 10 YEARS 2037 2038 | 2039 | 2040 2041 2042 2043 2044 2045 2046
Ptcjected ing Fanid Balanci-+1 81451065 | $1.302,013 | $1,609297 § '$1.575,345°] $1,097 217 | $1,63133¢ | $1.099.355 | $2.106:813.] S2.367.599 | §2.775.664
Conm'bunon%mmeoverwomyr 300% _ 3.00%|  3.00%]  3.00%|  3.00%|  3.00%| -3.00%  3.00% 3.00%|  3.00%
Contritntion avg. unit/month § increase $6.42 36.61 $6.81 $7.01 $7.22 | 5744 $7.66 $7.89 $8.13 $8.38
Contribution avg. per unit‘month 322039 | _$227.00 | $233.81| $240.82 | $24R.05 | 525549 | §263.15 | §271.05| &279.18] 328755
Reserve Comtribution - Anual $991,404 | $403.146 | 9415241 | 3427698 | S4MSI0 | $4SIUS| 9467957 5481378 S495819 | 810,604
Docs increase require membership vote?
Pmposeda!g _s&la.!amssperumt

Does specml aam mqmre vote?

hteoms from other soutces - —_

Total Reserve; Find Available . 81.843,369 | $1,706.059 | $2,024 5571 82,003,042 [ 52.417745 | 52,085,080 | $2.446.01% SZLETL191 {1 $2:863,418 | 53.285,357
Projected Expenditures - inflated | -8556211] -$116,222] $468,242( -$49.734] -$806,136 -$129462| -$282,590| -$313.221] -$121,317] -$250,904
Balance afier expenditures $1,287,158 | $1.589.837 | $1,556.296 | $1.953,308 | $1,611,610 | $1,955,618 | $2,164,322 | 82,338,970 | $2,742.100 | $3,035,454
Interest on balance after tax $15,755 $19,460 $19,049 $23,908 $15,726 $23.937 $26491 $28,629 $33,563 $37,154
Minimum requested balance N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A, N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A,
Percent funded (if implemented) *2 74.85%] 81.14% 82.60% 88.40% 87.46% 92,64% 96.04% 98.99%! 100.00%; 100.00%)
tojected Year Eirding Balance *3 SL302.903 | $1.609.297 | $1.575,345 | $1.977.217 | 31,851336 | 51979555 | $2.196.813 | 42.367,500 | 42,775,664 | $301%;
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Creekside of San Jose HOA

ASSESSMENT and RESERVE FUNDING DISCLOSURE SUMMARY
For the Budget Year 2017 ending 12/31/17

Per Davis-Stirling Statute 5570 ((old 1365.2.5)) Disclosure Form

(1) The 2016 budgeted regular assessment per ownership interestis avg. § 240.00 per month.
The 2017 budgeted assessment per ownership interest can be found in the Annual Budget Report.
Note: If assessments vary by the size or type of ownership Interest, the assessment
applicable to this ownership interest may be found in the aitached Annual Budget Report.

{2) Additional regular or speclal assessments that have already been scheduled to be imposed
or charged, regardless of the purpose, if they have been approved by the board andfor members:

Date assessment will be due  Amount per ownership interest per year. Purpose of assessment
N/A, N/A, ' N/A,

TOTAL

NOTE: if assessments vary by the size or type of ownership Interest, the assessment
applicable to this ownership interest may be found in the attached Annual Budget Report.
These assessments might be for purposes outside the scope of the current Reserve Study
and have been included by the party preparing the Assaciation's Annual Budget Report.

{3) Based upon the most recent reserve study and other information available to the board of directors,
will currently projected reserve account balances be sufficient at the end of each year to meet the
Association's obligation for repair and/or replacement of major components during the next 30 years:

Yes

{4) If the answer io {3) is no, what additional assessments or other contributions to reserves would be
necessary to ensure that sufficient reserve funds will be available each year durlng the next 30 years
that have not yet been approved by the board or the members.

Approximate date assessment will be due: Amount per ownership interest per year:

{6) All major components are inciuded in the Reserve Study and are included in Its calculations.

(6) Based on the method of calculation In paragraph {4) of subdivision (b) of Section 5570 ((old 1365.2.5)),
the estimated amount required in the reserve fund at the end of the 2016 fiscal yearis $ 14,509,240
based in whole or in part on the last reserve study or update prepared by Reserve Analysis Consulting, LLC
as of September, 2016. The projected reserve fund cash balance at the end of the current fiscal year is

$ 925,483, resulting in reserves being 61.32% funded at this date. If an alternate, but generally accepted,
method of calculatlon Is also used, the required reserve amount is §_N/A .

Septembar 21, 2016 @ by Reserve Analyats Consulting, LL.C. - REPRODUCTION OF THIS MATERIAL 1S PROHIBITED BY LAW Page 6.1 of .2



Creokside of San Jose HOA

(7.a.) Based on the method of calculation in paragraph (4) of subdivision (b} of Section 5670 of the Civil Code,

the estimated amount required In the reserve fund at the end of each of the next five budget years is $71 See Below,
and the projected reserve fund cash balance in each of those years,

taking Into account only assessments already approved and other known revenues, is $"2 See Below,

leaving the reserve at *3 See Below percent funding.

|Budget Year ; 2007 1 2m8 2019 2020 2021
*1 Estimated Amount Req'd In Fund to be 100% $1415649] $1584,727] $1.670,504] $1,855194] $1,737,533
*2 Reserve Balance (W/PREV. APPROVED DUES ONLY) $850449]  $985,560]  $1,023175] $1,157,974]  $961.635
*3 Estimated Percent Funded 60.07%| 62.19% 61.25% 62.42% 55.34%

(7.b.) if the Reserve Funding Plan approved by the Association is implemented, the projected reserve fund cash
balance in each of those years will be $*4 See Below leaving the reserve at *5 See Below percent funding.

Budget Year 2017 | 2018 2019 2020 2021

*1 Estimated Amount Req'd in Fund to be 100% $1,415,649] $1,584,727| $1,670,594] $1,855,194] $1,737,533
*4 Reserve Balance (IF FUND PLAN IMPLEMENTED) $558,819] $1,011,191] $1,075,505] $1,247,019] $1,098,019
*5 Estimated Percent Funded 60.67%| 63.81%| 64.38%| 67.22%] 63.19%

NOTE: The financial representations set forth in this summary are based on the best sstimates

of the preparer at that time. The estimates are subject to change. At the time this summary was
prepared, the assumed iong-term before-tax Interest rate earned on reserve funds was 2
percent per year, and the assumed long-term inflation rate to be applied to major component
repair and replacement costs was 3 percent per year.

(b) For the purposes of preparing a summary pursuant to this section:

(1) "Estimated remaining useful life" means the time reasonably calcuiated to remain before a
major component will require replacement. ‘

(2) "Major component” has the meaning used In Section 5550 ((old 1365.5)):

Components with an estimated remaining useful life of more than 30 years may be included In a
study as a capital asset or disregarded from the reserve calculation, so long as the decision is
ravealed in the reserve study report and reported in the Assessment and Ressrve

Funding Disclosure Summary.

{3) The form set cut in 5570 subdivision (a) shall accompany each Annual Budget Report or
summary thereof that is delivered pursuant to section §300. The form may be supplemented or
modified te clarify the information delivered, so long as the minimum information set out in
subdivision 5570 (a) is provided.

(4) For the purpose of the report and summary, the amount of reserves needed to be
accumulated far a component at 2 given time shall be computed as the current cost of
replacement or repair multiplied by the number of years the component has been In service
divided by the useful life of the component. This shall not be construed to require the board to
fund reserves in accordance with this calculation.

Further Notes: Please read the Requirements & Methodology in Section 2.00 and the Narrative

Statements in Section 4.00 of this Financial Summary for important detalls concerning this Reserve
Study's development.

September 21, 2016 © by Reserve Analysls Consutting, LL.C. - REPRODUGTION GE THIS MATERIAL IS PROHIBITED BY LAW Page 6.2 of .Z




Exhibit “D”

(Insurance Summary)
4 O’Connor Insurance Agency
[§i ©Connor et s
. J : Fhone 408.512.2195 Fax 408.51
B Insurance Agency James @oconnorhoaiscom

CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION
CIVIL CODE 5300{b){3) SUMMARY FORM

A PROPERTY: FARMERS INSURANCE: 07/21/2016 —07/21/2017
BLANKET BUILDING: $46,953,900 {150% REPLACEMENT)
UNIT OWNERS IMPROVEMENTE & BETTERMENTS: INCLUDED
EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN: INCLUDED
BUILDING ORDIVANCE: INCLUDED
DEDUCTIBLE: $10,000

B: GENERAL LIABILITY: FARMERS INSURANCE: 07/21/2016 — 07/21/2017
PER OCCURRENCE: $1,000,000
ANNUAL AGGREGATE: $2,000,000
HIRED/NON-OWNED ALTO: INCLUDED
MANAGEMENT ADDITIONALLY |NSURED: YES
DEDUCTIBLE: $0

] FIDEUTY BOND: FARMERS INSURANCE: 07/21/2016 — 07/21/2017
EMPLOYEE DISHONESTY: $500,000
MANAGEMENT ADDITIONALLY INSURED: YES
DEDUCTIBLE: $10,000

b: DIRECTORS & OFFICERS: FARMERS INSURANCE: 07/21/2016 - 07/21/2017
ERRORS & OMISSIONS: $1,000,000
DEDUCTIBLE: $1,000

F WORKERS COMPENSATION: FARMERS INSURANCE: 07/21/2016 —07/21/2017
EMPOLYERS LIABILITY: $1,000,000
DEDUCTIBLE: $0

E: UMBRELLA: FARMERS INSURANCE: 07/21/2016 — 07/21/2017
PER OCCURANCE: $10,000,000
ANNUAL AGGREGATE: $10,000,000

G: EARTHQUAKE & FLOOD: LLOYDS OF LONDON: 07/21/2016 - 07/21/2017
BLANKET BUILDING: 545,000,000
DEDUCTIBLE: 20%

This summary of the association’s palicles of insurance provides only certain Infarmation, as required by subdivision (b} of Section 5300 of the Clvil Code, and should
not be considered a substitute for the complete policy terms and conditions tontained In the actual policies of insurance. Any asseclation member may, upon request
and provision of reasonable natice, review the assoclation's Insurance policies and, upon request and payment of reasonable duplication charges, obtain coplas of
those palicles. Akhough the assoctation maintains the policies of insurance specified In this summary, the association’s policles of Insurance may not cover your
property or real property improvements to or around your dwelling, or personal injurles or other losses that oocur within or around your dwelling.

Even if a loss Is covered, you may nevertheless be responsible for paying all or a portion of any deductible that applies. Association member should consuit with thele
individual Insurance brokers or agents for appropriate additionat coverage.



CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION
Policy for Insurance Claims and Deductible Payment

In the event of damages, which result in an insurance claim, payment of the insurance
deductible will be the responsibility of the party who owns the damaged: portion of the
building, or the owner whose negligent or willful act caused the damage. Individual
owners are responsible for acts of their guests, invitees and tenants. In the event of a loss
affecting an individual unit, the owner of the unit is responsible for coordination of

repairs.

In the event of damage caused by an earthquake, each individual owner shall be
responsible for his/her pro-rata share (1/148) of the insurance deductible of the total
building coverage. Any deductible amount in excess of that number shall be borne
equally by all of the members, in the form of a special assessment.

Payment of all deductibles will be considered by the board on an individual basis, but the
basic rule will be that all claims will be investigated to determine the cause of the damage
and the responsible party will pay the deductible. It is strongly recommended that all
owners carry homeowner’s insurance providing liability and casualty coverage for their
individual unit, including loss assessment and earthquake loss assessment coverage.

Resolved by the Creekside of San Jose Homeowners Association
August 14, 2003
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Creekside of San Jose Homeowners Association
c/o Cornerstone Community Management
1800 Hamilton Avenue, Suite 210
San Jose, California 95125-5635

1. Official Communications. Civil Code Section 5310(a)(1).

The name and address of the person designated to receive official communications to the
Association, pursuant to Section 4035 is: Tanya Ruiz with Cornerstone Community
Management, 1800 Hamilton Avenue, Suite 210, San Jose, California 95125-5635.

2. Specified Addresses. Civil Code Section 5310(a)(2).

Upon receipt of a written request by an owner identifying a secondary address for the purpose of
assessment collection notices, the Association shall send additional copies of the following
documents to that secondary address: (1) those included in the Annual Budget Report; (2) the
documents to be delivered to an owner pertaining to delinquent assessments in Civil Code
Section 5300 and following; and (3) the documents to be delivered to an owner pertaining to the
foreclosure of a lien in Civil Code Section 5650 and following. The written request must be
made by first-class mail, postage prepaid, registered or certified mail, or overnight delivery by an
express mail service. The Association does not consent to service by email, facsimile or other
electronic means, nor by personal service. The owner may change his/her secondary address at
any time, provided that the Association is required to send notices to the indicated secondary
address only from the time the Association receives the request.

3. Posting of General Notices. Civil Code Section 5310(a)(3).

The location, if any, designated for posting of a general notice, pursuant to paragraph (3) of
subdivision (a) of Section 4045 is as follows: general notices are mailed to members via the
United States Postal Service. No location designated for posting of general notice.

4. Receipt of General Notices. Civil Code Section 5310(a)(4).

The Association may give certain legal notices to the members through “general delivery” in the
newsletter, in billing statements, by posting and in other ways. You have the right to request that
such notices be sent to you by the Association by “individual delivery”, which includes first-
class mail, postage prepaid registered or certified mail, or overnight delivery by an express mail
service, Such a request should be sent in writing by first-class mail, postage prepaid to
Comnerstone Community Management at the address above.




5. Meeting Minutes. Civil Code Section 5310(a)(5).

Please be advised that members of the Association have a right to obtain copies of the minutes of
meetings of the Board of Directors. Those minutes may be secured by contacting the
Association’s property management representatives, at the address indicated above, through a
written request, and payment of the reasonable costs of copying. Minutes proposed for adoption
that are marked to indicate draft status are also available to members under the same procedure,
within thirty (30) days of the meeting. Minutes of executive session meetings of the Board of
Directors are not available for distribution,

6. Notice of Assessment Collection Rights. Civil Code Section 5310(a)(6).
“NOTICE ASSESSMENTS AND FORECLOSURE

This notice outlines some of the rights and responsibilities of owners of property in common
interest developments and the associations that manage them. Please refer to the sections of the
Civil Code indicated for farther information. A portion of the information in this notice applies
only to liens recorded on or after January 1, 2003. You may wish to consult a lawyer if you
dispute an assessment.

ASSESSMENTS AND FORECLOSURE

Assessments become delinquent 15 days after they are due, unless the governing documents
provide for a longer time. The failure to pay association assessments may result in the loss of an
owner's property through foreclosure. Foreclosure may occur either as a result of a court action,
known as judicial foreclosure or without court action, often referred to as nonjudicial
foreclosure. For liens recorded on and after January 1, 2006, an association may not use judicial
or nonjudicial foreclosure to enforce that lien if the amount of the delinquent assessments or
dues, exclusive of any accelerated assessments, late charges, fees, attomey's fees, interest, and
costs of collection, is less than One Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars ($1,800). For delinquent
assessments or dues in excess of One Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars ($1,800) or more than 12
months delinquent, an association may use judicial or nonjudicial foreclosure subject to the
conditions set forth in Article 3 (commencing with Section 5700 of Chapter 8 of Part 5 of
Division 4 of the Civil Code). When using judicial or nonjudicial foreclosure, the association
records a lien on the owner's property. The owner’s property may be sold to satisfy the lien if
the amounts secured by the lien are not paid. (Sections 5700 through 5720 of the Civil Code,
inclusive) ‘

In a judicial or nonjudicial foreclosure, the association may recover assessments, reasonable
costs of collection, reasonable aftorney’s fees, late charges, and interest. The association may
not use nonjudicial foreclosure to collect fines or penalties, except for costs to repair common
areas damaged by a member or a member’s guests, if the governing documents provide for this.
(Section 5725 of the Civil Code)

The association must comply with the requirements of Article 2 (commencing with Section

3




5650) of Chapter 8 of Part 5 or Division 4 of the Civil Code when collecting delinquent
assessments. If the association fails to follow these requirements, it may not record a lien on the
owner's property until it has satisfied those requirements. Any additional costs that result from
satisfying the requirements are the responsibility of the association. (Section 5675 of the Civil
Code)

At least 30 days prior to recording a lien on an owner’s separate interest, the association must
provide the owner of record with certain documents by certified mail, including a description of
its collection and lien enforcement procedures and the method of calculating the amount. It must
also provide an itemized statement of the charges owed by the owner. An owner has a right to
review the association’s records to verify the debt. (Section 5660 of the Civil Code)

If a lien is recorded against an owner’s property in error, the person who recorded the lien is
required to record a lien release within 21 days, and to provide an owner certain documents in
this regard. (Section 5685 of the Civil Code)

The collection practices of the association may be governed by state and federal laws regarding
fair debt collection. Penalties can be imposed for debt coliection practices that violate these
laws.

PAYMENTS

When an owner makes a payment, he or she may request a receipt, and the association is
required to provide it. On the receipt, the association must indicate the date of payment and the
person who received it. The association must inform owners of a mailing address for overnight
payments. (Section 5655 of the Civil Code)

An owner may, but is not obligated 1o, pay under protest any disputed charge or sum levied by
the association, including, but not limited to, an assessment, fine, penalty, late fee, collection
cost, or monetary penalty imposed as a disciplinary measure, and by so doing, specifically
reserve the right to contest the disputed charge or sum in court or otherwise.

An owner may dispute an assessment debt by submitting a written request for dispute resolution
to the association as set forth in Article 2 (commencing with Section 5900) of Chapter 10 of Part
5 of Division 4 of the Civil Code. In addition, an association may not initiate a foreclosure
without participating in alternative dispute resolution with a neutral third party as set forth in
Article 3 (commencing with Section 5925) of Chapter 10 of Part 5 of Division 4 of the Civil
Code, if so requested by the owner. Binding arbitration shall not be available if the association
intends to initiate a judicial foreclosure.

An owner is not liable for charges, interest, and costs of collection, if it is established that the
assessment was paid properly on time. (Section 5685 of the Civil Code)

MEETINGS AND PAYMENT PLANS

An owner of a separate interest that is not a time-share interest may request the association to




consider a payment plan to satisfy a delinquent assessment. The association must inform owners
of the standards for payment plans, if any exist. (Section 5665 of the Civil Code)

The board of directors must meet with an owner who makes a proper written request for a
meeting to discuss a payment plan when the owner has received a notice of a delinquent
assessment. These payment plans must conform with the payment plan standards of the
association, if they exist. (Section 5665 of the Civil Code)”

7. Statement of Policies and Practices in Enforcing Lien Rights.
Civil Code Section 5310(a)(7).

A statement describing the Association’s policies and practices in enforcing lien rights or other
legal remedies for default in the payment of assessmenis is attached as Exhibit “A”.

8. Association Discipline Policy. Civil Code Section 5310(a)(8).
A statement describing the association’s discipline policy, if any, including any schedule of
penalties for violations of the governing documents pursuant to Section 5850 is attached as
Exhibit “B”..

9. Dispute Resolution Procedures. Civil Code Section 5310(z)(9).

A summary of dispute resolution procedures, pursuant to Sections 5920 and 5965 is attached as
Exhibit “C”,,

10.  Requirements for Physical Changes to Property.
Civil Code Section 5310(a)(10).

A summary of the requirements and procedure for Association approval or disapproval of a
physical change to property, pursuant to Section 47635, is attached as Exhibit “D”.

1.  Overnight Payment of Assessments. Civil Code Section 5310(a)(11).
The mailing address for overnight payment of assessments, pursuant to Section 5655 is:
Cornerstone Community Management, 1800 Hamilton Avenue, Suite 210, San Jose, CA 95125-
5635.

12.  Other Disclosures. Civil Code Section 5310.
The Association is not a party to any litigation at this time.

13. Homeowner Pricing and Fee Schedule.

The fees and charges to members for certain documents and information are set forth on the
Homeowner Pricing & Fee Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit “E”




14,  Fair Housing Policy. Government Code Section 12956.1

It is the policy of the Association to not discriminate in the exercise of its powers or duties based
on race, color, religion, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, sexual orientation,
familial status, marital status, disability, medical condition, genetic information, national origin,
source of income, ancestry, or any other factors which are illegal under California or federal law.

15. Right to Receive Annual Report. Cotporations Code Section 8321.

Pursuant to Corporations Code Section 8321, you are hereby notified that you have the right to
receive a copy of the annual report upon written request. The report is completed no later than
one hundred twenty (120) days after the close of the corporation’s fiscal year and contzins detail
concerning the balance sheet at the end of the fiscal year, the income statement and statement of
changes and financial position for the fiscal year, a statement of the place where the names and
addresses of the current members are located, Comerstone Community Management, together
with an accompanying report by the Associations independent accountant if the gross annual
income exceeds Seventy-Five Thonsand Dollars ($75,000).

16.  Security Issues.

Creekside of San Jose Homeowners Association may or may not provide for periodic security
services for the common area. It is the responsibility of each member of the Association to
protect their homes, families and tenants with appropriate safety measures such as locks and
alarms. Suspicious activity should be reported immediately to the San Jose Police Department at
911. Crime prevention information is available on the Police Department's website:
http://www.sjpd.org/bfo/community/Crimeprev/.




Creekside of San Jose Homeowners Association

Collection Policy
Exhibit A

Regular assessments are due, in advance, on the first (1*) day of each assessment period
and delinquent if not received, in full, by the Association within fifteen (15) days after
the due date thereof. Special and Special Individual Assessments are due on the date(s)
specified upon imposition and each installment thereof shall be delinquent if not received
by the Association with fifieen (15) days after it is due. A late charge of ten dollars ($10)
shall be due on any such delinquent assessment.

At the option of the Association, interest shall be due on all such amounts, once due and
unpaid for thirty (30) days, at the rate of ten ( 10%) per annum.

If any portion of any such assessment, late charge, interest or cost of collection remains
unpaid sixty (60) days afier the original due date thercof, a “Letter of Intent” to file a
Notice of Delinquent Assessment (“Lien”), also known as a “Pre-lien Notice,” will be
prepared and sent to the record owner(s). Please be advised that the Association has the
right to collect all reasonable cost of collection.

All such amounts, and ail other assessments and related charges thereafier due to the
Association until all such amounts are paid, must be paid in full and the Association shall
not be required to accept any partial or installment payments from the date of the referral
of an action to enforce the payment of delinquent amounts to the time that all such
amounts are paid in full.

If all such amounts have not been received thirty (30) days after the Pre-lien Notice is
mailed to the owner(s) of record, a Lien will be prepared and recorded as to the
delinquent property and the owner(s) thersof, and all collection fees and costs incurred
will be added to the total delinquent amount,

If all such amounts have not been received, in full, within thirty (30) days after the
recordation of such Lien and the delinquent assessment exciusive of any accelerated
assessments, late charges, attorney’s fees, fees, interest and costs of collection is greater
than Eighteen Hundred Dollars ($1,800.00) and/or the delinquent assessment is more
than Twelve (12) months delinquent, the Association may, without further advance
notice, proceed to take any and all additional enforcement remedies as the Association, in
its sole discretion, deems appropriate, including, without limitation, non-judicial
foreclosure of such Lien, judicial foreclosure, or suit for meney damages, all at the
expense of the property owner(s). The Association has the right at all times to attempt to
collect any delinquent regular or special assessment including accelerated assessments,
late charges, attorney’s fees, fees, interest and costs of collection by any manner provided
by law (including a civil lawsuit) for judicial and nonjudicial foreclosure.

Homeowner Association Collection Policy
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I1.

All payments received by the Association, regardless of the amount paid, will be directed

to the oldest assessment balances first, until which time all assessment balances are paid,
and then to late charges, interest and costs of collection unless otherwise specified by
written agreement.

The Association shali charge a “returned check charge” equivalent to the charge incurred
by the Association for all checks returned as “non-pegotiable”, “insufficient funds” or
any other reason.

All above-referenced notices will be mailed to the record owner(s) according to law. In
the absence of written notification by an owner to the Association, the address of the

owner’s separate interest may be treated by the Association as the owner’s mailing
address.

The Board of Directors of the Association may revise this policy, either generally or on a
case-by-case basis, if it finds good cause to do so.

The mailing address for overnight payment of assessments is:
Creekside of San Jose HOA
c/o Cornerstone Community Management
1800 Hamilton Ave, #210
San Jose, CA 95125-5635

Homeowner Association Collection Policy




| EXhibit “B”
(Association Discipline Policy)

CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION
HEARING PROCEDURE AND FINES

1. Notice and Hearing Procedures. The following notice and hearing procedures will be
used whenever the Board mects to consider an alleged violation, which could result in

disciplinary action against a Member.

a. Notice of Hearing.

Notice of the hearing will be sent at least ten (10) days prior to the hearing and will be given
either personally or by prepaid first-class mail to the most recent address shown in the
Association’s records. The notice shall contain, at & minimum, the date, time, and place of
the meeting, the nature of the alleged violation for which a Member may be disciplined, and
a staternent that the Member has a right to attend and may address the Board at the mesting.

b. Opportunity to Be Heard.
Members have the right to send a letter, send 2 representative with written proof he/she is

there on your behalf, or appear in person to present evidence as to why they should not be
disciplined. Members also have the right to bring an afforney with them to advise them or to
speak on their behalf. The hearing will be held in executive session unless the member
requests otherwise.

¢ Rescheduled Meetings.

Upon timely, written request and for worthy cause, an accused party may be granted a
continuance to a new hearing date. In the event a person fails to appear for a hearing, the
Board will review the evidence presented and maks its decision accordingly.

d. Correction of Violation.
In the event the violation is corrected prior to the hearing date, the Board may, if appropriate,
discontinue the proceedings.

¢. Notice of Decision,
The Association has fifteen (15) days afler the hearing to provide a written determination of
the Board’s decision from the hearing.

f. Conflicts of Interest.

If members of the Board have a conflict of interest (i.e., they filed the complaint, or the
complaint was filed against them) such persons may not vote on the issue.
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CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION
HEARING FROCEDURE AND FINES

2. Remedies for Enforcement.
To enforce the governing documents, the Board may impose one or more of the remedies
described below, as it deems appropriate to be effective. The selection of one remedy
does not preclude the Association’s right to pursue others.

a. Warning letters

b. Monetary penalties

¢. Suspension of membership privileges

d. Alternative dispute resolution (arbitration or mediation)

e. Litigation
Failure to pay fines within thirty (30) days may result in legal action to collect the fines.
If the Association is forced to refain an aftomey to ensure compliznce, collect fines, etc.,
the owner shall be liable for those attorney fees and all related expenses in addition to the
fines.

3. Fine Schedule.
Violation of the association’s governing documents may result in a warning letier, fine,
suspension of privileges and/or coniinuing fines as the Board may determine to be
appropriate to the situation and as provided for in the fine schedule below. In addition to
fines, the Board may commence alternative dispute resolution or file a lawsuit seeking
judicial relief. The imposition of penalties and suspension of privileges will be subject to
notice and hearing procedures. Assessable violations include, but are not limited to:

Violation of parking or pool rules

Excessive noise

Failure to conform to uniform appearance guidelines

Loud, destructive, or aggressive pets

Abuse or misuse of common areas

Dumping of garbage or refuse outside of proper receptacles

Violation of architectural alteration restrictions

1* Violation: ‘ Warning or fine up to $150.00 and/or $25 per day until corrected
2™ Violation: Same offense: Up to $200,00 and/or $50 per day until corrected

3" Violation: Same offense: Up to $300.00 and/or $75 per day until corrected
Additional Violations: Same offense: Up to $500.00 and/or $100 per day until corrected
Vandalism, endengering others: Fines up to $500.00 per incident, depending on the violation.
Continuing violations: Fines up to $100.00 per day may accrue until the violation is cured.
Suspension of privileges:  In addition to or in lieu of fines, privileges may be suspended for
up to one year.

The Association may pursue one or more remedies simultansously. The selection of one remedy
does not preclude the Association’s right to pursue others.
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Exhibit "C" :
ADDENDUM TO ASSESSMENT COLLECTION POLICY: OFFER FOR
INTERNAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION (IDR), MEET AND CONFER, AND ADR

DISPUTE RESCLUTION, MEET AND CONFER PROCEDURE CC §5920

WHO MAY START: This procedure may be invokad by the Assoclation or an Owner. Either party may make a written request to meet and confer to
resolve a dispute. The Board shall designate a member of the Board to meet and confer.

WHO PARTICIPATES: When a written request for Dispute Resd ution is received from an owner, the Association shall participate. If the Association
makes a written reguest for anowner to participate, the owner may elect nat to participate,

ON- CPATION BY THE OWNER: Ifthe owner declines to participate, the Association may begin Altemnative Dispute Resolution, pursuant to Civil
Code § 5930,

IF THE QWNER PARTICIPATES, THEN THE MIEET AND CONFER TAKES MLACE:

A. The Association will act on a reguest by the owner within 45 days of receipt of the written request to meet.

B. The meeting shall be established in good faith, take place promptly at a mutuaily convenient date, time and location. Each party shall explain their
position andshall confer in good falth to resolve the dispute. If an attorney or other person will be present to assist the owner, the Assodationmust be
notifiedi nwriting 10 days prior to the established date. if noties is not given 10 days prior, the Assacistioncan request a continuance, Each party to
pay for their own costs. ‘

C. An agreement resolving the dispute by the parties shall be made inwriting and dated and signed by the parties, Including the Board designee on
behalf of the Assodation,

D. A written decisionshall be made by the designated Board Member and deliverad or received by the owner withinten (10) days after the meet and
confer.

E. If the owner pariicipates, but the dispute is resclved other than by agreement of the owner, the awner shall have the right to appeal to the
Assoclation's Board of Directors.

APPEAL:

A. if the owner disputes the resclution, an appeai must be taken to the Board of Directors within thirty {30) days of the date of the decision by the
designated Board member.

B. If therels an appeal, the Board must hear the Appeal at its next regularly scheduled meeting in executive session, then issue a written decision
within ten (10} days.

NO CONFLICT:

A. Theresolutlon must not be in conflict with the law or the governing documents.

B. The agreament must be consistent withthe authority grantedto the Board of Directors or the Board must ratify the agreament.
€. The written agreement, which is dated and signed by the parties, wilt bind both partiesand be judidally enforceable,

NO FEE: No fee will be tharged to the owner during this process.

EXCEPTIONS: Reasonable exceptions may be made to the time deadlines, in the discretion of the Baard. Any exce ptions will be mada on a case-by-case
basis.

TIME: The maximum time to act on a written request by the owner is forty-five (45} days. Initiation to completion of the dispute wil| take no more than
one hundred eighty (L80) days, unless extended by bath parties.

ADR - ALTERNATIVE DiSPUTE RESCLUTION CC §5925- 5965 [SUMMARY] As of Januvary 1, 2006

1. If an association, owner or member of an assoclation seeks either:
A. Declaratory or Injunctive ralief; or
B. Declaratory orinjunctive relief and a claim for monetary damages not in excess of the jurisdictional llmits of small claims court {as of
lanuary 1,2012: $10,000 for individuals or $5,000for homeowner association), cther than for association assessments, concerning the
enforcement of the goveming documents; the parties shall submit thelr dispute to Alterative Dispute Resolution (APR}, such as
mediation or arbitration. A Request for Resdlution {"Request”) begins the process and it shall include:
1) A description of the dispute;
2} A request for ADR
3} Noticethat the party receiving the Request is required to respond within thirty (30) days or the Request will be deemed rejected.
€. Thisdoes not apply to small claims action.
D. Excapt as requirad by law, this does not apply to an assessment dispute.

2. A partyonwhom a Request for Resolution s served has 30 days following service to accept or reject the request. Ifa party does not accept the
request within that period, the request Is deemed rejected by the party.

3. If the Request Is accepted, ADR shall be completed within ninety (90) days from the date of acceptance, or it can be extended by a written
stipulation signed by both parties.

“FAILURE OF A MEMBER OF THE ASSOCIATION TO COMPLY WITH THE ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESQLUTION REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 5930
OF THE QVIL CODE MAY RESULT IN THE LOSS OF THE MEMBER'S RIGHT TO SUE THE ASSOQATION OR ANOTHER MEMBER OF THE ASSCCIATICN
REGARDING ENFORCEMENT OF THE GOVERNING DOCUMENTS OR THE APPLICABLE LAW."

Unless otherwise stated by the Association, this document serves as the Assodation’s OFFER FOR INTERNAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION (DR), MEET AND
CONFER, AND ADR and it serves asits procedure for the same,

Revised: 10/23/14




Exhibit “D”

CREEKSIDE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION
PROCEDURE TO REVIEW ARCHITECTURAL ALTERATIONS

Anyone who wishes to make an architectural change or modification must submit an
architectural application and receive written approval from the Board of Directors prior to the
start of the work, Examples of architectural changes include, but are not limited to new
windows, front or garage doors, etc. Please find attached architectural application to request
permission for your alteration.




Creekside of San Jose Homeowners® Association
Architectural Review Policy
(Civil Code Section 1378)

The Board of Directors of Creeksids of San Jose Homeowners’ Association has
edopted the following policy pursuant to California Civil Code Section 1378 concerning
the review of proposed changes in the condominium project.

1. Article VIII, Section 8.1 of the Declaration of Covenants, Condition and
Restrictions for Creekside of San Jose recorded March 12, 1979, as amended by
amendments recorded May 4, 1979 and March 16, 1990 (“CC&Rs"™), provides:

Architsctural Approval. No building, fence, wall or ofher structure shall
be commenced, erected or maintained upon the Properties, nor shall any exterior addition
to, or change or alteration therein or thereof, including patio covers and untermas, be
made until the plans and specifications showing the nature, kind, shape, height, materials
and location of the same shall have been submitted to and approved in writing as to
harmony of exterior design and location in relation to swrounding structure ant
topography by the Architectural Committee provided for in this Declaration. Approval
shall be withheld if, in the reasonable opinion of the Committes, the proposed
improvement or alteration is not in harmony with the external design and location in
relation to surrounding structures and topography, or if the view of any Lot would be
impeded thereby., Approval or denial shall be besed, among other things, on adequacy of
site dimensions; adequacy of structural design and materials; conformity and harmony of
external design with neighboring structures; effect of location and use of improvements
on neighboring property improvements; operations and uses; relation of topography,
grade and finighed ground elevation of the ‘property being improved to that of
neighboring property; proper spacing of main elevations with respect to nearby streets;
preservation of natoral view and sesthetic beauty; and conformity of plans and
specifications to the purpose, general plan and intent of this Declaration. In the event
said Committee, or its designated representatives fiils to approve or disapprove such
design and location within thirty (30) days after said plan and specifications hes been
submitted to it, approval will not be required and this Article will be deemed 1o have
been fully complied with.

2. Atrticle VIII, Section 8.2 of the CC&Rs provides:

Landscaping Approval. Except for landscaping materials installed on a
residential Lot in & location between the residential unit and the garage, no trecs, bushes,
shrubs or plantings of any type or nature shall be planted or implanted so as to be visible
from the Common Area unless and until the plans and specifications for the species and
placement of any such trees, bushes, shrubs or plants have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Architectural Commitiee provided for in Section VIII hereof,
as to the preservation of the natural view and sesthetic beauty which each Lot and
Member is intended to enjoy. Said plans as submitted shall show in detail the proposed




elevations and locations of said trees, bushes, shrubs or plants, including the location and
elevation of the same, both in the size as planted and also the mature size, in relation of
cach immediately adjacent Lot subject to these restrictions. Approval of said plans by
the Architectural Committee shall be withheld if, in the reasonable opinion of the
Committee, the proposed plenting is not or will not be in harmony with the design and
location of Common Area landscaping within the Property or if the view of any Lot
wouldbeimmdedbyﬂlelocaﬁonofanysuchu'ee,bush,shmborplant,orinanyother
menner. In any event, the Architectural Committee shall have the right to require any
member to remove, trim, top or prune any tree, or shrub, which in the reasonable belief
of the Architectural Committes, impedes or detracts from the view of any Lot

3. Aticle VIIL, Section 8.5 of the CC&Rs provides in pertinent part:

General Provisions. No members shall undertake or authorize any work
of irnprovement pursuant to Section 1 hereof excopt upon the prior receipt of said
member of an appropriate Permit issued by the Building Department of the City of San
Jose, except for such work(s) of improvement as to which said Building Department shall
state in writing require no such permit,

4, This policy applies to ell construction, muodification, maintenance,
alferations and improvements which are the subject of Sections 8.1 and 8.2 of the
CC&Rs.

5. The Architectural Control Comimittee (“ACC”) shall review plans
requesting changes subject to Sections 8.1 and 8.2 within thirty (30) days after submittai,
and, within that time, shall issue a written decision concerning the application. If more
infmmationisnseded,theACCshallrequestitandtheapplicantshallmpplyit.

6. A decision on a proposed change shall be made in good faith and may not
be unreagonable, arbitrary, or capricious.

7. A decision on a proposed change may not violate any governing provision
of law, including, but not limited to, the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Part 2.8
(commencing with Section 12900) of Division 3 of Title 2 of the Government Code), ora
building code or other applicable law governing land nse or public safety.

8. A decision on a proposed chenge shall be in writing. If a proposed change
is disapproved, the written decision shall include both an explanation of why the
proposed change is disspproved and a description of the procedure for reconsideration of
the decision by the Board of Directozs.

9. If a proposed chenge is disapproved, the applicant is entitled to
reeonsidernﬁonbythaBoardofDirectorsatanopenmeeﬁngoftheboatd. This
Paragraph does not require reconsideration of a decision that is made by the Board of
Directors at a meeting that satisfies the requirements of Civil Code Section 1363.05.




Reconsideration by the Board does not constitute digpute resolution within the meaning
of Civil Code Section 1363.820.

10. Nothinginﬁlispoﬁcyauﬂ:oﬁzesaphyﬁcnlc‘mngetothemin
a manner that is inconsistent with an Association's goveming documents, unless the

change is required by law.

11.  The Association shall anmmally provide the members with notice of the
requirements for Association approval of physical changes to property. The notice shall
describe the types of changes that require Association approval, and shall include a copy
of the procedure used to review and approve ot disapprove a proposed change, including
this policy.
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Architectural Application/Liability Agreement

Association Name: Creekside of San Jose HOA

From:
Owners Name (please print)
Address of unit:
Home phone #: ( ) Work phone #: (_ )

I, (we), the above named owner, request approval to make the following exterior addition, change, or alteration on
my home at the address stated hereafter:

Description of addition, change, or alteration (including model, style, color, etc):

Who will perform work? (Include qualifications)

Plans and/or specifications, (drawings) showing nature, kind, shape, height, materials, must be submitted as part of
this request.

I, (we), the above named owner will be responsible for damages that may arise as a result of the above stated
addition, change, or alteration, and will be responsible for maintenance of same. I agree to obtain and produce
copies of all necessary City permits to the Association, It is also agreed that any necessary insurance coverage for
the protection of these additions will be the sole responsibility of the owner(s). Further, owner(s) agree that if and
when this unit is sold, this agreement must be included as apart of the sale and agreed to by the new owner(s). This
will apply to ALL subsequent owners, and will be disclosed to any potential buyers of the property.

It is recognized by me that the Association maintains the right of approval of the above stated addition, change, or
alteration and may require its removal, should it become necessary for safety, maintenance of surrounding
structures, or lack of proper maintenance by the above named owner.

The above named owner agrees to hold the Association, its Board of Directors, members, employees, and agents
harmless from any liability, injury, damage, or costs that may be incurred as a result of the above stated addition,
change, or alteration.




PERMITS - Please ATTACH any City Building Permits Required and list those being attached:

Applicant agrees and understands that submission of this form alone does not necessarily fulfill all requirements for
approval. Committee and/or Board may require additional information in order to make a decision. Until all
information has been received, the application stands disapproved.

Applicant, (Homeowner), understands that if modification to plans are required by the Committee, that special
conditions may be placed on completion of work.

Applicant’s understanding that failure to receive City of San Jose approval where necessary, and/or Committee
approval, constitutes automatic authorization by the applicant to the Association to have the work brought into
conformance with the approved plans, specifications, and special requirements at the complete expense of the
applicant/homeowner.

PRINT NAME SIGNATURE OF OWNER {APPLICANT) DATE
PRINT NAME SIGNATURE OF OWNER (APPLICANT) DATE
Send or Fax to: Cornerstone Community Management,

1800 Hamilton Avenue, San Jose, CA 95125
Fax (408) 448-3084

For Association Use Only
Board of Directors /Architectural Review Clommittee; O Approved O Deried

Special conditions required for approval:

Date approved to proceed:

Building permit requited: [ YES 0 NO

Reason for Denial:

Authorized Association Representative Date




Homeowner Pricing & Fee Schedule
Exhibit “E”

The following pricing schedule makes available to homeowners the costs that may be incurred
when requesting additional information and documents and when selling and re-financing their
property. All requests must be in writing and accompanied by full payment in advance.

UNIT SALE DOCUMENTS PACKAGE $290.00*

Includes: Articles of Incorporation, By-Laws, CC&Rs, Rules & Regulations, if any, Operating Budget (current &
previous year), & Reserve Analysis, most current fiscal year-end Financial Statement, & Architectural Disclosure, if
any, minutes from the last twelve (12) months, newsletters from the last twelve (12) months, and our in-house one-
page Certification form which includes Tenant/Owner ratio, Litigation Status, and Insurance Carrier information.

HOA Certification Statement** $100.00 first page, plus $50.00 for each additional page, $150.00 Max
Homeowner Demand Statement $60.00

Articles of Incorporation $20.00

By Laws $30.00

CC&Rs $70.00

Budget & Reserve Summary : $10.00
Year-End Financial Statement $15.00

Meeting Minutes, current year $6.00 ea month
Meeting Minutes, previous year $6.00 ea month
Meeting Minutes, 2 yrs & older $11.00 ea month
Newsletters $6.00 en

Rules & Regulations (if available) $15.00
Litigation Disclosure $60.00
Statement of Owner/Tenant ratio $25.00
Insurance Carrier Information™** $10.00

Reserve Study $40.00

Transfer fee $250.00

*2-day Rush Request, additional charge of $50.00
Overnight Rush Request, additional charge of $75.00
Same Day Rush Service, additional $100.00

*+HOA Certification Overnight Rush Fee is double the standard fee

***Insurance information for the association is provided with the annual budget disclosure and at other times during
the calendar year. Owners should keep this information handy and in a safe place for easy reference. Owners will
be billed for any inquiry to the management company from any source (title company, re-finance, mortgage
company, rcal estate agent/oroker, property manager, etc.) for information pertaining to the association’s insurance
policy, carrier, or agent.

Homeowner Pricing-20177
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CAMPBELL, CA
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

135667  (TRACT 6326)

QE .

CREEXKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEOWNERS'ASSOCIATION

e

The name of the corporation is CREEKSIDE OF SAN

) ARTICLE I

JOSE HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION.

ARTICLE II

This corporation (hereinafter called the "Association™)
is organized pursuant to the General Non-Profit Corporation
Law of the State of California.

ARTICLE IIT

The principal office for the transaction of the
business of the Association is located in Santa Clara County, L
State of California.

ARTICLE IV g

PURPCSES AND POWERS OF THE ASSOCIATION

The Association does not contemplate pecuniary gains

or profits to the members therecf, and the specific and pri-

mary purposes for which it is formed are to
maintenance, preservation and architectural
residence Lots and Common Areas within that
situated in the City of San Jose, County of
State of California, described as Lots 149,

and 12,

6 through 15, inclusive, 40-through

70 through 80, inclusive of Tract 6326 as per Map recorded in Book

provide for the
control of the
certain property
Santa Clara,
150, 151, and 1

45, inclusive, and

426




FEAS

of Maps, pages 7 through 10, inclusive, Official Records;
Santa Clara County, California, and to promote the health,
safety and welfare of the menbers and residents within the
above-described ﬁroperty and any additional property as may
hereafter be brought within the jurisdiction of this Assoc-
iation for these purposes pursuant to that certain Declaration
of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (hereinafter called
the "Declaration") applicable to the property and recorded
or to be recorded in the Office of the County Recorder of
Santa Clara County, California.
In furtherance of said purposes, this Association
shall have the power to:
(a) Perform all of the duties and obligations of
the Association, as set forth in the Declaration.
(b) Fix, levy, collect and enforce payment by any
lawful means all charges or assessments, pur-
suant to and as limited or conditioned by the
Declaration; to pay all expenses in connection
therewith, and all office and other expenses
reasonably incident to the conduct of the business
of the Association, including all licenses, taxes,
or governmental charges levied or imposed against
the property of the Association.
(c) Acquire (by gift, purchase or otherwise), own,

hold, improve, build upon, operate, maintain,

o o o e



"'-:..J.’-

{d)

(e)

(£)

convey, sell, lease, transfer, dedicate for
public use or otherwise dispose of real property
or personal property in connection with the
affairs of the Association.

Borrow money, and only with the assent (by

vote or written consent) of two-thirds (2/3rds)
of each class of members, mortgage, pledge,

deed in trust, or hypothecate any or all of

its real .or personal property és security for
money borrowed or debts incurred.

Dedicate, sell or transfer all or any part of
the Common Areas to any public agency, authority,
or utility for such purposes and subject to such
conditions as may be agreed by two-thirds (2/3rds)
of each class of members agreeing to such
dedication, sale or transfer.

Participate in mergers and consolidations with
other non-profit corporations organized for

the same general purposes or annex additional
residential property and/or Common Area(s),
provided that any merger, consolidation or

such annexation shall have the assent or writtén
consent of two-thirds (2/3rds) of each class of
members, except for such annexations which are

pursuant to the terms of the dedication.
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(g) Have and to exercise any and all powers, rights
and privileges which a corporation organized
under the General Non-Profit Corporation Laws
of the State of California may by law now or
hereafter by law have or exercise.

The foregoing statement of purposes shall be con-
strued as a statement both of purposes and of powers, and
purposes and powers in each clause shall in no way be limited
or restricted by reference to or inference from the terms
or provisions of any other clause, but shall be broadly
and liberally construed as independent purposes and powers,
all for the benefit and protection of the health, safety and
welfare of the residents, as aforesaid.

Notwithstanding any of the above purposes and
powers, this Association shall not engage in activities
that, in themselves, are not in furtherance of the purposes
set forth in this Article III, and nothing contained in the
foregoing statement of purposes and powers shall be con-
strued to authorize this Association to carry on any

activities for profit of its members.

ARTICLE V

MEMBERSHIP

Every person or entity who is a record owner of a
fee or undivided fee interest in any Lot which is subject

by covenant of record to assessment by the Association,
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including contract sellers, shall be a member of the Assoc-
iation. The foregoing is not intended ﬁo include persons
or entitles who hold an interest merely as security for

the performance éf an obligation. Membership shall be
appurtenant to and may not be separated from ownership of

any Lot which is subject to assessment by the Association.

ARTICLE VI

VOTING RIGHTS

The Association shall have two classes of voting
membership:
| Class A. Class A Members shall be all Owners with
the exception of Declarant (as defined in the
Declaration). Class A Members shall be entitled
to one (1) vote for each Lot owned. When more
than one person owns an interest in the Lot, all
such persons shall be Members. The vote for such
Lot shall be exercised as they, among themselves,
determine, but in no event shall more than one (1)
vote be cast with respect to any Lot.
Class B. Class B Members shall be Declarant and
shall be entitled to three (3) votes for each Lot
owned. The Class B Membership shall cease and be
converted to Class A Membership on the earliest
occurring of either of the following events:

(a) When the number of total votes outstanding
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in the Class A Membership equals the total

number of votes outstanding in the Class B

Membership; or

(b) Two (2) years from the date of the issuance

of the most recent Final Subdivision Pubklic

Report, issued by the Department of Real

Estate of the State of California, for any

Phase of the overall development; or

(¢) On

s 19 .

—————

ARTICLE VII

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The affairs of this Association shall be managed by

a Board of five (5) Directors, who, except for the initial

Directors, shall be members of the Asscociation. The number

of Directors may be changed by amendment of the By-Laws of

the Association.

The names and addresses of the persons who

are to act in the capacity of Directors, as initial Directors,

until the selection of their successors, are:

NAME

HIRO XAZU SAITO
FUMAIKI OTANI
KAREL WONG
JEFFREY KENDALL

KEN IWAGAKI

ADDRESS

929 Daffodil Way,
San Jose, California

804 Hibiscus Lane,
San Jose, California

3909 Woodcreek Lane,
San Jose, Califormia

10484 Merriman Road,
Cupertino, California

3170 williams Road,
San Jose, California
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ARTICLE VIII

DISSOLUTION

Upon dis§olution of the Associatiocn, the assets
of the Association shall be distributed to an appropriate
public agency to be used for purposes substantially
similar to those for which this Association was created.
In the event that such distribution is refused acceptance,
said assets shall be granted, conveyed and assigned to
any non-profit corporation, association, trust or other
organization organ;zed and operated for such similar

purposes.

ARTICLE IX

DURATION

This corporation shall exist perpetually.

ARTICLE X

AMENDMENTS

Amendment of these Articles of Incorproation requires
the vote or written consent of at least a bare majority of
a quorum but not more than a bare majority of the voting
power of the Declarant identified in Section 2.11 of the

Declaration.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,. for the purposes cf forming

this corporation, under the laws of the State of California,
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we, the undersigned, constituting the initial incorporators

of this Association, have executes these Articles of Incorpor-

ation on March 7, 1979 '

J—
/’

" TATE OF cALIFORNIAg
55,

COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA)

On this 7th day of March, 1979, before me, a Notary Public in and for said
Saito '
State, personnalily Appeared Hirokazu, /Fumailki Otani, Karel Wong, Jeffrey Kendall,

and Ken Iwagaki, known to me to be the Directors of the Association described in and
that executed the written instrument and also kmown to me to be the persons who exwcuted

the written instrument on behalf of the Association therein named and acknowledged to

me that such Association executed the szame,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, T have hereunto set my hand and official seal.

j//é”zéfé

<

TIM MESLEH
Notary utlls - Calfurpin
Frinciple Ortige in
Sante Clors Quumy

memission explran Apeil 14¢h, 1681 ;
A T B O S O S S S O DO

OFFICIAL SEAL

TIM MESLOH
5 Noltary Public - Califomia
. Principle Oifice in
4 Sama Clara County

nmn expires April 14th, 1981
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LEVY, ERLANGER & COMPANY
Certified Public Accountants

290 King Street, Suite 12
San Francisco, CA 94107

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW REPORT

Board Of Directors
Creekside of San Jose Homeowners Association
San Jose, California

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Creekside of San Jose
Homeowners Association (the Association) which comprise the balance sheets as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes
in fund balances and cash flows, for the years then ended and the related notes to the financial
statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management's
financial data and making inquiries of Association management. A review is substantially less
in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the
financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Accountant's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagements in accordance with Statements on
Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review
Services Committee of the AICPA. Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain
limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any material modifications
that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the resulis of our
procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Accountant's Conclusion on the Financial Statements
Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to

the accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.




Board Of Directors
Creekside of San Jose Homeowners Association
Independent Accountant's Review Report (Continued)

Future Major Repairs and Replacements

As further discussed in the notes to the financial statements, the Association has completed a
study of its common area major components sufficient to assist the Board in planning for future
major repairs and replacements. The reasonableness of the resuiting replacement reserve
funding plan is a function of the completeness of the major component list and the accuracy of
the estimated quantity, useful and remaining lives, and replacement costs of those components.

Funds are being accumulated in the replacement fund based on estimated future costs for
repair and replacement of common area property. Actual expenditures and investment income
may vary from the estimated amounts, and the variations may be material. Therefore, amounts
accumulated in the replacement fund may or may not be adequate to meet al! future component
repair and replacement costs. The ability of the Association to fund its future requirements is
dependent upon annual increases in that portion of the assessment which is allocated to the
replacement fund, and/or special assessments. In the event that funds are not available when
needed, the Board may, subject to the constraints of California law and the Association's
governing documents, increase regular assessments, levy special assessments, and/or delay
repair and replacement of common area major components until sufficient funds are available.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
information about future major repairs and replacements of common property be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have not audited, reviewed or
compiled the required supplementary information and, accordingly, do not express an opinion, a
conclusion, nor provide any assurance on it.

é; 'Z !
.
’ .

January 24, 2017




CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2)

Investment in certificates of deposit {Note 2)

Assessments receivable less allowance for
doubtful accounts of $2,000 and $2,000,
respeciively (Note 2)

Prepaid insurance

Total assets
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Assessments paid in advance

Insurance payable

Income taxes payable

Interfund reclassifications and transfers
Major component replacement liability (Note 3)

Total liabilities

COMMITMENTS (NOTE 4)
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)

Total liabilities and fund balance

2016 2015

Operations  Replacement Total Total

Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 42023 $ 286,381 § 328404 % 549,027
700,000 700,000 300,000
7314 7.314 3,774
52,744 52,744 52,824
$ 102,081 $ 986381 §$ 1088462 $__ 905625
$ 6617 $ - $ 6,617 $ 986
7,486 7,486 6,146
22,861 22,861 19,518

313 313
9488 (9,488)

’ _ 1,600,006 1,500,000 1,369,000
46,452 . 1,499,825 1,646,277 1 ,395,65Q
55,629 (513,444) (457.815) (490,025)

$ 102,081 §__ 986381 $ 1088462 3 905625

See independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes.
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CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS QF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2016

2016 2015
Operations  Replacement Tatal Total
Fund Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Assessments $ 260,868 9 185,372 $ 426240 $ 426,240
Interest income (Note 2) 3,441 3,441 1,581
Member interest income 352 382 432
Insurance claim settlements 204,988 204,988
Late charges and other income 5,365 5,365 348
Total revenues 471,573 168,813 640,386 428,611
EXPENSES
Administration
Bad debt expense (recovery) = = - (3,747)
income tax provision (Note 2) A3 313
Insurance : 95,586 85,586 95,605
Legal and accounting 1,845 1,845 1,820
Management 34,080 34,080 34,080
Office, printing and postage 11,300 11,300 10,006
Reserve study ] 825
142,911 313 143,224 438,689
Maintenance and ¢perations
Gutters and downspouts 3,350 - 3,350 3,250
Insurance claim repairs 202,988 202,988
Landscape maintenance 58,111 58,111 57,236
Maintenance contract 5,400 5,400 5,400
Pest control 3,926 3,926 3,060
Pool and spa maintenance 7855 7,655 7,323
Other maintenance and operations 3,762 3,752 3,800
285,182 - 286,182 80,069

See independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes.
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CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

2016 2015
Operations  Replacement Total Total
Fund . _ Fund Funds Funds
EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
Utilities
Gas and electricity $ 9550 $ - $ 9,550 $ 9,323
Water and sewer 21,030 o 21,030 25,061
30,580 - 30,580 34,384
Major repairs and repiacements
Major component replacement
provision (Note 3) = 149,190 149,190 146,958
= 149,160 149,180 146,958
Total expenses 458,673 149,503 608,176 400,100
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENSES 12,900 19,310 32,210 28,511
BOARD-APPROVED INTERFUND
RECLASSIFICATIONS AND TRANSFERS (2,989) 2,989 < =
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT),
BEGINNING OF YEAR (NOTE 5) 45718 . _ (535743 (490.025) {518.53
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT),
END OF YEAR 56629 $__ (513.444) 457 815 490,025

See independent accountant’s review report and accompanying notes.
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CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

2016 2015
Operaticns  Replacement Total Total
Fund : Fund Funds Eunds

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses $_ 12,900 $ 19310 $ 32210 $ 28511

Adjustments io reconcile excess (deficiency)
of revenues over expenses to nef cash
provided by operating activities:

Major compenent replacement provision = 149,190 149,190 146,958
Major component replacement expenditures (9,190 (9,190) {7,958)
Bad debt expense (recovery) (3,747)
Decrease (increasae) in assets:
Assessments receivable (3,540) _ (3,540) 4,303
Prepaid insurance 80 80 626
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 5,631 5,631 5
Insurance payable 3,343 3,343 (28,656)
Assessments paid in advance 1,340 1,340 454
Income taxes payable 313 313
Due to (due from) other fund 9,488 (9,488)
Total adjustments 16,342 130,825 147,167 111,995
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 26,242 150,135 179,377 140,506
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net (purchase) sale of certificates of deposit - (400,000) {400,000) (50,000)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY {USED FOR)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES - {400,000) {400,000) (50,000}

See independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes.
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CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

BOARD-APPROVED INTERFUND
RECLASSIFICATIONS AND TRANSFERS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
END OF YEAR

Supplemental Disclosures
Interest paid

Income taxes paid

2016 2015
Operations  Replacement Total Total
Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 29,242 $ (249,865) § (220623) § 90,506
(2,989) 2,989 = -
15,770 533257 ____ 540027 _ 458521

3 42023 § 286,381 $__ 328404 § 549,027

| 2

See independent accountant’s review report and accompanying notes.
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CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

THE ASSOCIATION

Creekside of San Jose Homeowners Association (the Association) is a common
interest development located in San Jose, California which consists of 148 residential
units and certain common area property. The Association was organized as a nonprofit
mutuai-benefit corporation in April 1979 to provide for management, maintenance and
architectural control of the individual units and the common area property. The
Association is governed by a member-elected Board of Directors which is responsible for
enforcing provisions of the governing documents, which include covenants, conditions
and restrictions (CC&Rs), by laws, and rules and regulations. Major decisions, as
determined by the CC&Rs, are referred fo the Association owners as a whole.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Assessments. Association members are subject to annual assessments, usually
payable in equal monthly installments, to provide funds for operating expenses and
major repairs and replacements. In addition to regular annual assessments, special
and/or emergency assessments may be imposed by the Association’s Board Of
Directors, under certain circumstances without member approval. Any excess
assessments at year end are retained by the Association for use in the succeeding year.
Revenues and expenses and information about future major repairs and replacements
are explained in greater detail in the annually-distributed pro forma operating budget
(pursuant to California Civil Code Section 5300).

Assessments receivable at the balance sheet date represents the aggregate amount of
assessments due from unit owners. The Association's policy is to retain a collection
service and/or legal counsel and place liens on the properties of owners whose
assessments are delinquent. In certain instances, foreclosure may be necessary. The
collection process is explained in greater detail in the annually distributed annual
statement of collection procedure (pursuant to California Civil Code Section 5730).
Because of these collection procedures, the Board believes that, subject to a reasonable
allowance for doubtful accounts, if any, all assessments are coliectible. The estimate of
allowance for doubtful accounts, if any, is based, generally, on amounts past due greater
than 90 to 120 days.

See independent accountant's review report.




CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of presentation. The accompanying financial statements, and the Association's
corporate income tax returns, have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, whereby revenues are recognized when eamed and expenses are recognized
when incurred.

Cash _and cash equivalents. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the
~ Association considers all short-term investments with a maturity at date of purchase of

three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are classified with cash in
the balance sheet.

Concentrations _of credit risk. Financial instruments which potentially subject the
Association to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash, cash equivalents
and investments. The Association maintains its financial instruments with what
management believes to be high credit quality financial institutions and limits the amount
of credit exposure to any one particular institution. Cash, cash equivalents and
investments in excess of federal deposit insurance (FDIC) coverage limits as of
December 31, 2016 totaled approximately $13,000.

Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates, and the
differences could be material.

Fund accounting. The Association's governing documents provide certain guidelines
for governing its financial activites. To ensure the observance of limitations 'and
restrictions on the use of financial resources, the Association maintains its accounts
using fund accounting. Financial resources are classified for accounting and reporting
purposes in two funds established according to their nature and purpose. The
operations fund is used to account for the financial resources available for the general
day-to-day operations of the Association. The replacement fund is used to accumulate
financial resources designated for future major repairs and replacements.

See independent accountant's review report.




CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEOWNERS ASSQCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income taxes are paid on income from sources which are not related to the nonprofit,
membership purposes of the Association. Nonmembership income, less related
nonmembership expenses, subject to federal and California income taxes includes
interest earned on cash and cash equivalents, and investments.

For federal purposes, the Association may elect to be taxed as either a regular
corporation or as a homeowners association. In the former instance, it is taxed at
graduated rates from 15% fo 39% on net nonmember income; in the latter case it is
taxed on net nonexempt function income (which is generally similar to net nonmember
income) at a fiat 30% rate. California income taxes approximate 9% of taxable income.

The Association's tax filings are subject to audit by various taxing authorities: federal
income tax returns for the previous three years remain open to examination by the
Internal Revenue Service and California income tax retums for the previous four years
remain open to examination by the Franchise Tax Board. In evaluating the Association's
tax provisions and accruals, the Association believes that its estimates are appropriate
based on current facts and circumstances.

Interest earned on operations and replacement funds, net of related income taxes, is
retained in said respective funds.

Investments consist of federally-insured certificates of deposit stated at cost which
approximates market value.

Membership in the Association is mandatory by virtue of unit ownership.
Real and personal common property acquired by the original owners from the

developer is not recognized in the Association’s financial statements, in accordance with
prevalent industry practice, because it is commonly owned by the individual Association
members and its disposition by the Board Of Directors is restricted. Similarly, major
repairs, replacements and improvements fo real and personal property are not
recognized.

See independent accountant’s review report.
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CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

3. MAJOR COMPONENT REPLACEMENT LIABILITY

The Association's governing documents, and California state law (Civil Code Section
5300), require that the Board Of Directors provide for the repair and replacement of
common area major components. Accordingly, funds which comprise the replacement
fund are not generally available for the payment of day-to-day operating expenses.

The Association has completed a study of its common area major components sufficient
to assist the Board in planning for future major repairs and replacements. The
reasonableness of the resulting replacement reserve funding plan is a function of the
completeness of the major component list, and the accuracy of the estimated quantity,
useful and remaining lives, and replacement costs of those components.

In September 2016, Reserve Analysis and Consulting, L.L.C., a Sausalito, California-
based construction consuliing firm, performed a component study to estimate the useful
and remaining lives and replacement costs of the Association's common property. The
Board is funding future major repairs and replacements over the estimated remaining
useful lives of the components based on the foregoing study and their judgment,
considering amounts previously accumulated in the replacement fund. Accordingly,
$173,540 of reserve funding has been included in the 2017 budget.

Funds are being accumulated in the replacement fund based on estimated future costs
for repair and replacement of common area property. Actual expenditures and
investment income may vary from the estimated amounts, and the variations may be
material. Therefore, amounts accumulated in the replacement fund may or may not be
adequate to meet all future component repair and replacement costs. The ability of the
Association to fund its future requirements is dependent upon annual increases in that
portion of the assessment which is allocated to the replacement fund, and/or special
assessments. In the event that funds are not available when needed, the Board may,
subject to the constraints of California law and the Association's governing documents,
increase regular assessments, levy special assessments, and/or repair and replacement
of common area major components until funds are available.

See independent accountant's review report.
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CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

3. MAJOR COMPONENT REPLACEMENT LIABILITY (CONTINUED)

Activity in the major component replacement liability account during the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015 is summarized as follows:

2016 2015

Liability balance, beginning of year $ 1,368,000 $ 1,230,000
Provision for annual wear 149,190 146,958

— 1,518,190 _..1.376,958
Expenditures:
Gutters - {2,810) =
Irrigation (1,510)
Lighting (1,010) (3,278)
Pool and spa (1,237)
Roof (2,988)
Trees (3,170)
Other major repairs and replacements (1,145)
Total (9,190 7,958
Liability balance, end of year $_1,509.000 $ 1,369.000

4, COMMITMENTS

The Association enters into contracts for management and/or maintenance services in
the normal course of its business operations. These contracts are generally cancelable
on thirty to ninety days' advance notice.

See independent accountant's review report. ,
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CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEQWNERS ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
The balance sheet at the beginning of the year ended December 31, 2016 has been

restated to adjust fund balances for overstatement of insurance expense in prior year.
Accordingly, the beginning fund balance has been restated as follows:

Year Ended
12-31-15

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
BEGINNING OF YEAR
As previously reported $ (523,815)
Adjustment for
overstatement of
insurance expense 5,279
As restated $_(518,536)

DATE OF MANAGEMENT'S REVIEW

in preparing the financial statements, the Association has evaluated events -and
transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through January 24, 2017, the date
that the financial statements were available to be issued.

See independent accountant's review report.
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CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON FUTURE
MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACENMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016
(COMPILED WITHOUT AUDIT OR REVIEW)

The following information on common area major components was compiled by Reserve
Analysis and Consulting, L.L.C. of Sausalito, California as of September 2016 and has served
as the basis for the current estimates of replacement reserve funding:
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See independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes.
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CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON FUTURE
MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016
(COMPILED WITHOUT AUDIT OR REVIEW)
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See independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes.
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CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON FUTURE
MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016
(COMPILED WITHOUT AUDIT OR REVIEW)
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The Association has conducted a study to estimate the useful and remaining lives and current
replacement costs of common property major components. Funding requirements consider an
estimated before-tax interest rate of 2% on replacement fund cash balances and an annual
inflation rate of 3% on major component replacement costs. The replacement fund cash and
investment balances at December 31, 2016 totaled $986,381. The estimated liability for major
repairs and replacements at this date totaled approximately $1,509,000. The portion of 2017
regular assessments budgeted to be allocated fo the replacement fund totals $173,640.

See independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes.
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‘L RECORDER
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PO BOX 5552 S
San Jose, CA 95150 7 Pigel

First Amendment to Bylaws of Creekside
of San Jose Homeowners Association

‘'c¢/o Property Management Network iSMm°

Whereas said First Amendment to Bylaws is to
affect the certain real property situated in the City of San
Jose, County of Santa Clara, State of California, known as
Lots 150, 151 and Lots 70 through 87, inclusive, of Tract
6326, as per Map recorded on September 11, 1978 in Book 426
of Maps, Pages 7 through 10, inclusive, Santa Clara County
Records and the certain real property situated in the City
of San Jose, County of Santa Clara, State of California,
known as Lot 149 and Lots 1 and 2, 6 through 15, inclusive,
and 40 through 45, inclusive, of Tract 6326, as per Map
recorded on September 11, 1978 in Book 426 of Maps, Pages 7
through 10, inclusive, Santa Clara County Records.

Whereas it is the desire of the members of
Creekside of San Jose Homeowners Association to amend its
Bylaws to allow for a lesser quorum to conduct a meeting of
the general membership, it is proposed that a quorum
required to conduct a meeting be lowered from 50% of the
membership to 25% of the membership.

Now, therefore, Article IV, Section 6 of the
Bylaws of Creekside of San Jose Homeownhers Association
previously recorded on March 12, 1979 in Book E337, Pages
576, et _sedq., Series No. 6308893 of the Official Records of
Santa Clara County Records is herewith amended to provide in
its entirety as follows:

Section 6. orum:

Attendance in person or by proxy of twenty-five
percent (25%) of the general membership shall
constitute a quorum. In the absense of a quorum
at a members meeting, a majority of those present,
- in person, or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting to
another time, but may not transact any other
business. An adjournment for a lack of quorum
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shall be to a date not less than five (5) days and
not more than thirty (30) days from the original
meeting date. A quorum for such an adjourned
meeting shall be 25% of the general membership.-

In the event that a meeting is not set at the
original meeting, notice of time and place for the
adjourned meeting shall be given to the members in
the manner prescribed for a regular meeting.

In Witness Whereof, this First endment to Bylaws 48?7
is executed this S day of F AN g ; 20859, /190./}' }ﬁ.x;

Creekside ¢f San Jcse
Homeowners Association

_zﬁ%ﬁw

Presad

BY,
Secreta
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Officers’ Certification of the First Amendment
To Bylaws of the Creekside of San Jose
Homeowners Association

We, the undersigned, say:

That we are the duly elected and acting President
and Secretary, respectively, of Creekside of San Jose
Homeowners Association, a California non-profit mutual
benefit corporation; that the First Amendment to Bylaws to
which this Certification is attached which amends the
certain Bylaws recorded March 12, 1979 in Book E337, Pages
576, et seqg., Series No. 6308893 of the Official Records of
Santa Clara County, California affecting that certain
property commonly known as Tract No. 6326, recorded on
September 11, 1978 in Book 426 of Maps, at Pages 7 through
10, inclusive, has been duly approved pursuant tc Article
VIII, Section 1 which provides that the Bylaws may be
amended by the affirmative vote or written consent of at
least a bare majority of a quorum but not more than a bare
majority of the voting power of the Association other than
the vote of declarant.

We declare under penalty of perjury, under the laws of
the State of California, that the foregoing is true and
correct.

Dated:{jf#/wia "7[.. /770 Q:, MW*/

d’ A/ Peside

In Witness whereof, I have h eunto subscribed my name Aaﬁ7 ..

and seal of said Association on , 1889 /9%0-

acretary
[seal]
State of California )
)ss
County of Santa Clara )
jqqaﬁ%@fﬂii”
On re.bf‘darq Y, , 1989, before me, the undersigned,

a Notary Public A an& for said State, personally appeared
RO3E - JoHANSON and A M, PasSRY
known to me to be the President and Secretary of the
corporation that executed the within instrument on behalf of
the corporatiocn therein named, and acknowledged to me that
such corporation executed the within instrument pursuant to
its Bylaws or a resolution of itd4 Board of Dlrectors

OFFICIAL SEAL
JOSEPH F. ROSE

o NOTAR'Z FUSLIC - CALIFORNIA
' SANTA CLARAR COUNTY
My Comm. Exgires Nev, 18, 1992

‘7'ZﬁHG!ﬁL
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BY-TLLAWS
oF

CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

The terms defined in this Article I shall, when used
in these By-Laws, have the meanings herein specified.

l. "Association" means CREEKSIDE;OF SAN JOSE HOME-

OWNERS' ASSOCIATION, its successors and assigns.

2. "Common Area" and "Common Facilities® shall mean

all real property owned, leased and controlled or occup;ed by
the Association for the common use and enjoymentaof the members
of the Association.

3. "Community Services" shall include any and all

of the purposes, duties, obligations, or acts of or to b?'
performed or authorized by the Association, as set forth in

the Articles of Incorporation of the Association, these By-Laws
or the Declaration, or as the same may be amended hereafter,
including, but not limited to, the landscaping and maintenance
of the Common Area and the maintenance of the exterior of all
residential dwellings (including exterior painting, exterior
walls and roofs of such dwellings as originally constfucted).
driveways, sidewalks, and off-street parking areas within the

service area,.

4. "Conveyance" shall mean and refer to conveyance
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of a fee simple title.

5. "Declaration" shall mean and refer to the Declara-

tion of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions, as amended
from time to timé, applicable to the Properties, recorded
or to be recorded against the Properties in the Office of
the County Recorder, County of Santa Clara, State of Calif-
ornia.

6. "Declarané“ shall collectively mean and refer to
FOREMOST DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATES, INC., a.California cor-
poration, and DAIWA HOUSE CORPORATION OF AMERICA, INC., a
California corporation, and their respective successors and
assigns,

7. "Deed of Trust" shall mean the conveyance of any

Lot or other portion of the Property to secure the perfor-
mance of an obligation.

8. "Lot" shall mean and refer to a recorded Lot
within the Properties, and each additional Lot annexed pur-
suant to the Declaration, upon which there has been or will
be constructed a single-family residence, but shall not mean
or include any Common Area Lot.

9. "Member" shall mean and refer to every person or
entity who holds mempership in the Association.

10.. "Owner" shall mean and refer to one or more persons
or entities who are the record Owner of a fee simple title to

any Lot which is a part of the Properties, including contract
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sellers; but excluding those having such interest merely

as security for the performance of an obligation.

11. "Properties" shall mean and refer to all of the

real property described in Article I of the Declaration,
which is, by this reference, incorporated herein and made
a part hereof, and any other additions thereto as may here-

after be brought within the jurisdiction of the Association.

ARTICLE II

OFFICE

Section 1. Principal Office: The principal

office for the tranaction of the business of the Association
is hereby fixed and located in the County of Santa Clara,

State of California. The Board of Directors is hereby

granted full power and authority to change said principal
office from one location to another within said Santa Clara
County.

ARTICLE III

MEMBE RS

Section 1. Membership: Every person or entity

(including Declarant), who is a record Owner or a fee or

undivided fee interest in any Lot which is subject to cov- .

enants of record to assessment by the Association, shall be
a member of the Association. Every member of this Asscciation
shall be subject to the provisions of the Articles of Incorpor-

ation and these By-Laws. The foregoing is not intended to
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include persons or entities who hold an interest merely as
security for the performance of an obligation. No Owner
shall have more than one membership. Membership shall be
appurtenant to and may not be separated from the fee
ownership of any Lot which is subject to assessment by
the Association. Ownership of such Lot shall be the sole
qualification for membership.

Section 2. Transfer: The membership held by

any Owner of Lot shall not be transferred, pledged, or alien-
ated in any way, except upon the sale or encumbrance of such
Lot, and then only to the purchaser or deed of trust holder
of such Lot. Any attempt to make a prohibited transfer shall
be void, aﬁd will not be reflected upon the bébks and records
of the Association. In the event the Owner of any Lot should
fail or refuse to transfer the membership registered in his
name to the purchaser of such Lot, the Association shall have
the right to record the transfer upon the books of the Assoc-
iation.

Section 3. Termination of Membership: Membexship

in the Association shall automatically terminate when, if
Such menber is the fee Owner of the Lot, such member sells
and transfers the Lot.

Section 4. Voting Rights: The classes of member-

ship in the Association, the voting rights of members of each

embership class, rules regarding use of proxies,the method
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of resolving joint owner disputes; and the voting procedures

shall be as set forth in Article IV of the Declaration.

Section 5. Membership Certificates: In its
discretion, the;hoard of Directors of the Association may;.
but need not, issue appropriate membership certificates
evidencing membership in the Association.

Section &. Plural Memberships: A member may own

more than one membership in this Association by complying
with the qualifications of membership as set forth in
Section 1 of this Article.

Section 7. Dues and Assessments: The members of

the Association shall be jointly, severally and personally
liable for the payment of such dues and assessments as may
from time to time be fixed and levied by the Board of
Directors pursuant to Article VI of the Declaration. Said
assessments shall be assessed uniformly among all members.
If such dues and assessments are not paid by the member
when they are due, they shall bear interest from the date of
delinguency at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum, and
the Board of Directors may require the delinquent member to
Pay a late charge in accordance with Section 7.1 of the

Declaration.

Section 8. ' Enforcement of Payment of Dues and

Assessments: Should any member fail to pay his dues and

assessments before delinguency, the Association, in the
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discretion of the Board of Directors, shall have the right
to enforce payment of such delinguent dues and assessments
by (a) filing and maintaining legal action against such
delinguent member, or (b) recording in the Office of the
Recorder of Santa Clara County a claim of lien for such
delinguent dues and assessments against the estate and im-
provements thereon owned by the delinquent member and by
foreclosing such lien in accordance with the laws of the
State of California then in effect governing the foreclosure
of mortgages on real property. There sﬁall be added to any
claim hereunder the amount of such delingquent dues and
assessments, the late charge, the costs of preparing and
filing the complaint, and, in the event a judgment is ob-
tained, such judgment shall include said interest and a
reasonable attorney's fee, together with the costs of the

action.

Section 9. Curing of Delinquency: Upon the timely

curing of any delinguency for which a notice of claim of lien
Or any such action has been filed by the Association pur-
suant to Section 8; the officers of the Association shall
file or record an appropriate release of such notice or
dismissal of such action, as the case méy be, upon the pay-
ment by the delinquent member of a fee, to be determined by
the Board of Directors, to cover the costs of preparing or
filing and recording such release, together with the payment

of such other costs, interests or fees as shall have accrued
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in connection with the delinguency.

ARTICLE IV

MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

Section 1. Place of Meeting: All meetings of

members shall be held at the principal office of the Assoc-
iation, or at a meeting place reasonably close thereto, but
in any event within the County of Santa Clara, as such place
may be fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Annual Meetings: The first annual

meeting of the members shall be held in Santa Clara County.
within thirty (30) days after fifty-one (51%) percent of the
Lots have been sold, or not later than six monéhs after the
sale of the first Lot, whichever occurs first, and each sub-
Sequent reqular annual meeting of the members shall be held on
the same day of the same month of each year thereafter,

at the hour of 8:00 o'clock P.m. in Santa Clara County,
provided, however, that the Board by resolution may fix a
date for the meeting no more than thirty (30) days before

or after said date. If the day for the annual meeting of

the members is a legal holiday, the meeting will be held at
the same hour on the first day following‘which is not a legal

holiday.

Section 3. Special Meetings: A special meeting

of the members shall be pfomptly called by the Board of

Directors upon either;
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(a) The vote for such meeting by a majority of a
quorum of the Board of Directors; or

(b) Receipt by the Board of Directors'of a
writ;en request therefor signed by members
representing not less than twenty—five (25%)
percent of the total voting power of the Assoc-
iation, or by members representing not less than
fifteen le%) percent of the voting power residing
in members other than the Declarant.

Section 4. Notices of Meetings: Written notice

of meetings, annual or special, shall be given to each member
entitled t9 vote, either personally or by sending a copy of
the notice through the mail, postage prepaid, to his
address appearing on the books of the Association, or
supplied by him to the Association for the purpose of
notice. All such notices shall be sent to each member
entitled thereto not less than thirty (30) days nor more
than sixty (60) days before each meeting, and shall specify
the place, the day and the hour of such meeting, and in case
of special meetings, the general nature of the business to
be transacted.

When any'meeting of members, either annual or special,
is adjourned for thirty (30) days or more, notice of the time
and place of the adjourned meeting shall be given as in the

case of an original meeting. Except as aforesaid, it shall
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not be necessary to give any notice of an adjournment or
of the business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting,
other than by announcement thereocf at the meeting at which

such adjournmenﬁ is taken.

Section 5. Consent of Absentees: The transaction

of any business at any meeting of members, either annual or
special, however called and noticed, shall be as valid as
though had ;£ a meeting duly held after regular call and
notice if a quorum be present either in person or by proxy,
and if, either before or after the meeting, each of the
members entitled to vote, not present in person or by proxy,
signs a written waiver of notice, or a consent to the holding
of such méeting, or approval of the minutes ;hereof. All
such waivers,consents or approvals shall be filed with the
records of the Association or made a part of the minutes of
the meeting.

Section 6. Quorum: The presence either in person

oi by proxy, at the meeting of members entitled to cast fifty
percent (50%) of the voting power shall constitute a quorum
for any action except as otherwise provided in the Articles

of Incorporation, the Declaration, or these By-Laws. If

any meeting cannot be held because a guorum is not presenf.
the members present, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn
the meeting to a time not less than(forty—eight (48) hours

--—-———‘-—‘--.__- — o i —
nor more than thirty (30) days from the time the original

meeting was called. Except where a greater portion of the




E 33589

voting power is required by the Articles of Incorporation,
the Declaration or these By-Laws a majority of the voting
power of each class of votes present, in person Or by

proxy, shall prevail at all meetings.

Section 7. Proxies: Every member entitled to

vote or execute consents shall have the right to do so

either in person, or by an agent or agents authorized by

s written proxy executed by such member of his duly authori-
zed agent and filed with the Secretary qf the Association;
provided that no such proxy shall be valid after the expira-
tion of the eleven (11) months from the date of its execution.

Section 8. Cumulative Voting: Every member (both

Class A and Class B members) entitled to vote at any
election for directors shall have the right to cumulate his
votes and give one candidate a number of votes equal to the
number of directors to be elected multiplied by- the number

of votes to which he is entitled, or to distribute his

votes on the same Principle among as many candidates as he
shall think fit. The candidates receiving the highest number
of votes up to the number of directors to be elected shall

be elected.

ARTICLE V
DIRECTORS
Section 1. Powers: Subject to limitations of

-

the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, or these

1n.




£ 337590

By-Laws and of the California Corporations Code as to action

to be authorized or approved by the members, and subject to
the duties of the directors as prescribed by these By-Laws,
all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the
authority of, and the business and affairs of the Assoc-
iation shall be controlled by the Board of Directors. With-
out:prejudice to such general powers, but subject to the
same limitations, the directors are vested with and shall

have the following powers, to wit:

(a)

{b)

(c)

To retain, appoint and remove all officers,
to prescribe such powers and duties for them

as may be consistent with law, with the Articles

of Incorporation,the Declaration and/or these
By-Laws, to fix their compensation and to re-
quire from them security for faithful service
when deemed advisable by the Board.

To conduct, manage and control the affairs and
business of the Association, and to make and
enforce such rules and regulations therefor
consistent with the law, with the Articles of
Incorporation, the Declaration and/or these
By-Laws, as the Board may deem necessary or
advisable.

To adopt and use a corporate seal, and to
prescribe the form of certificate of memberships

to such persons as shall be eligible for membership,
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as provided in ARticle III of these By-Laws.

As more fully set forth in the Declaration, to
fix and levy from time to time regular dues and
assessments upon the members of the Association;
to fix and levy from time to time in any calendar
year special assessments applicable to that year
only for capital improvements with the vote or
written assent of a majority of the voting power
of the Association residingiin members other than
Declarant; to determine and fix the due date for
the payment of such dues and assessments, and the
date upon which the same shall become delinguent;
provided, however, that such dues and assessments
shall be fixed and levied only to provide for the
payment of the expenses of the Association and of
taxes and assessments upon real or perscnal pro-
perty owned, leased, controlled or occupied by
the Association, or for labor rendered or materials
or supplies used and consumed, or equipment and
appliances furnished for the maintenance, im-
provement or development of such property or for
the payment of any and all oi:ligations in relation

thereto, or in performing or causing to be per-

- formed any of the purposes of the Association for

the general benefit and welfare of its members,

12,
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including the obtligstions togarding repair and
maintenance of Lhe landsecaping and/or tkterior
surfaces of the reafdence structures, and theg
Board of Directors ig herepy authorized to incur
any and all such oxpoenditures for BnyY of tho
foreyulny purpozes and t0 provide adoquate re-
Rerves for replacementy ar it shall deem to ba
hecegruary or advimable {n the interegt of the
Anagufacion or welfare of fea mombers; HOWEVER,
tha Asgociation shajl hot incur aggregate expon-
dituren for capltal Improvementa to the Common
Arca in any figcal yoear in excerse of five percent
(3%) of the budyeted Jross expunses of the Assoc~
iation for that fiscal year. BSuch aszossments
hall bo fixed at a uniform rate for all Lots,
5hould any member fall to pey such dues and
assesoronts hoforan delinguency, the Bourd of
Directore in Its discretion is suthorized to
anforce the payment of wuch dolinquent dues and
arsesgmonts ay provided in Article 111, Bection 8,
of those Dy-Lawsg. )

Yo enforee the provieions of the Declaration
applicable to the Properties, thosae By~Laws, the
Rules and Regulations of tho Associatdon, as the
same may Lo adopted ¢r anended by the Doard of

Pirectora, or othor usyreements of the hssociation,

P At s B TRLLY Lol TV T R
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(£} To contract for and bsy fire and exlended

{g)

th)

{1}

(1

Tovaerage, casualty, llabidity and other inaurance
insuring the unit Owners, including btnding of
tha mampers of any management body, 1f deogmed
advigable by the board.

To contract for and Pay maintenanc, gardoning,
utilities, materialeg ang Buvplios, and services
relating to the Common Area and the per formance
of the community etervices, Lo einploy personne]
necessary for the operation of the projece, in-
cluding Jegsl and accountling services, and to
contrace for and pay for improvemcnts ang comménity
facilittes,

T0 delegata itg pCYors according to law, and
fuhject to the approvsal of the members, to
adopt thesa By-Laws,

To grant easemonts where ncceasacy for utilities
and sewar facilities avar the Common Area $o
ferve the Common Armps a2nt tha lots.

To £ix, dstermine aml pname from time to time,

ig locesaary or advisable, the fund, fouﬁﬁation
Or corporation which {s then or there ¢rganized
OT operated for charitable purpogses tn which
the-assote of this Asscciation 2hiiall be dis~

tributed upon liguidation or aissolution according

L RN

.
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to the Articles of Incorporation of this cor-
poration. The assets so distributed shall be
those remaining after satisfaction of all just
debts' and obligations of the Association and
after digtribution of all property held or ac-
quired by the Association under the terms of

a specific trust or trusts.

Section 2. Number and Qualification of Directors:

The Board of Directors shall consist of the number of directors
named in the Articles of Incorporation until changed by
amendment of the Articles, or by an amendment to this Section
fixing or changing such number. Except for the initial
Directors,'only a person who is a member of the Association
may serve .as a Director.

Section 3. Election and Term of Office: Until the

holding of the organizational meeting of the members referred
to in Section 2, Article IV, of these By-Laws, the Board of
Directors shall consist of those Directors who constituted
the incorporators of this Association. The Directors shall
be elected at each annual meeting of members and shall serve
for the terms specified below, but if any such annual

meeting is not held, or if the Directors are not elected
thereat, the Directors may be elected at any special meeting
of members held for that purpose. All Directors ghall hold

office until their respective successors are elected.
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At the first énnual meeting two (2) Directors shall
be elected to serve for one (1) year or until the next
annual meeting, and three (3) Directors shall be elected to
serve for two (2) years. At each annual meeting after the
first, the Directors to be elected shall be elected to serve
for two (2) years. It is intended hereby to stagger the
terms of Directors so that the Association is assured of con-
tinuity of leadership.

Section 4. Vacancies: Vacancies on the Board of

Directors may be filled by a majority of the remaining
Directors, though less than a quorum, and each Director so
elected shall hold office until his or her successor is
elected at an annual ﬁéeting of members, or at a special
meeting called for that purpose.

A vacancy or vacancies shall be deemed to exist in

case of the death, resignation or removal of any Director.

If the members shall increase the authorized number of Directors

but shall fail to elect the additional Directors as provided
for at the meeting at which such increase is authorized, or
at an adjournment thereqf, or in case the members fail to
at any time elect the full number of the authorized Directors,
a vacancy or vacancies shall be deemed to exist.

The members may at any time elect Directors to fill
any vacancy not filled by the Directors, and may elect the
additional Directors at .the meeting at which an amendment

of the By-Laws is voted authorizing an increase in the

lé.
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number of Directors.

‘If any Director tenders his or her resignation to the
Board of Directors, the Board shall have power to elect a
successor to take.office when the resignation becomes
effective. No reduction of the number of Directors shall
have the effect of removing any Director prior to the expir-
ation of his or her term of office.

Section 5. Organization Meeting: Immediately

following each annual meeting of the members, the Board of

Directors shall hold a regular meeting for the purpose of
organization, election of officers and the transaction of
othex business. WNotice of such meeting is hereby dispensed
with.

Section 6. Other Regular Meetings: Other regular

meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without call
at such place and day and hour as may be fixed from time to
time by resolution of the Board of Directors; provided that
notice of the time énd place of reguiar meetings shall be
posted at a prominent place or places within the Common Area;
provided further that should the day of any regular meeting
fall upon a legal holiday, then the meeting which otherwise
would be held on said day shall be held At the same time on
the next day thereafter ensuing which is not a legal holiday.
Notice to the Directors of the time and place of regular

meetings of the Board is hereby dispensed with.

17.
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Section 7. Special Meetings - Notices: Special

meetings of the Board of Directors for any purpose may be
called at any time by the Chairman or by the President, or
if they are unable or refuse to act, by the Vice-President
or by any two.Sirectors.

Written notice of the time and place of special
meeéings and the nature of the special business to be
considered shall be delivered personally to the Directors
or sent tQ each Difector by letter or by telegram, postage
- or charges prepaid, addressed to him or her at his or her
address as it is shown upon the records of the Association,
and posted in the manner prescribed for notice of regular
meetings: In case such notice is mailed or Felegraphed
to the Directors, it shall be deposited in tﬁe United
States Mail or delivered to the telegraph company at or
near the place in which the principal office of the Assoc-
iation is located at least seventy~-two (72) hours prior to
the scheduled time of the holding of the meeting. Such
mailing, telegraphing or delivery as provided herein shall
be due, legal and personal notice to each such Director.

Section 8. Notice of Adjournment: Notice of

adjournment of any Directors’ meeting, either regular or
special, need not be given to absent Directors, if the
time and place are fixed at the meeting adjourned.

Section 9. Quorum: A majority of the number of

Directors as fixed by the Articles &f Incorporation or

18.
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these By-Laws shall be necessary to constitute a quorum
for the transaction of business, except to adjourn as
hereinafter provided. Ewry act or decision made or done
by a majority of the Directors present at a meeting duly
held at which aiquorum is present shall be regarded as the
act of the Board of Directors.

Section 10. Adjournment: A guorum of the

Directors may adjourn any Directors' meeting to meet agaiﬁ
at a stated day ané hour; provided, however, that in the
absence of a quorum,a majority of the Directors present at
any Directors' meeting, either regqular or special, may
adjourn from time to time until the time fixed for the next
regular meeting of the Board.

rSection 11. Fees and Compensations: No Director

or ‘0fficer shall receive any salary for his services as
such Officer or Director. Nothing herein contained shall
be construed to preclude any Director or Officer from
serving the Association as agent, counsel, or any capacity
other than as such Director or Officer, and receiving com-
pensation therefor, provided that the vote of any Director
who is selected to so serve and receive compensation shall
not be counted when such selection is made.

Section 12. Presiding Officer: The members of

the Board of Directors shall elect one of their number to
act as Chairman and one of their number to act as Secretary.

The Chairman shall preside at all meetings and the Secretary
r
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shall record the Minutes of all Meetings of the Board of

Directors and of the members.

Section 13, Indemnification of Directors, Officers,

and Employees: . Except to the extent prohibited by then

applicable law, this Association shall defend, reimburse,
indemnify and hold harmless each present and future
Director, officer, and member of any standing committee
of this Association, from and against all loss, cost, lia-
bility and expense which may be imposed upon or reasonably
incurred by him, including reasonable séttlement payments,
in connection with any claim, action, suit, or proceeding,
or threat thereof, made or instituted, in which he or she
may be involved or be made a party by reason.of his or her
being or having been a Director, Officer, or member of any
standing committee of this Association, or by reason of any
action alleged to have been taken or omitted by him or her
in such capacity, if a disinterested majority of the Board
of Directors of this Association (or, if a majority of the
Board of Directors is not disinterested, then independent
legal counsel) determines in good faith that such person
was: (a) acting in good faith; (b) within what he or she
reasonably believed to be the scope of his authority, and
(c) for a purpose which he or she reasonably believed to
be in the best interests of the Association.

The right of indemnification provided in this

section shall inure to each person referred to in this
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section, and in the event of his death; shall extend to
his legal representatives. The right of indemnification
provided in this section shall not be exclusive of any
other rights to which any such person, or any other
individual, mayébe entitled as a matter of law (including,
without limitation, his rights under Section 830 of the

California Corporations Code).

ARTICLE VI

OFFICERS

Section 1. Officers: The Okficers shall be a
President, Vice-President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer,
which Officers shall be elected by and hold office at the
pleasure 6f the Board of Directors. Each of the Officers
may, but need not, be a member of the Board of Directors.
Any two or more of such offices, except those of President
and Secretary, may be held by the same person. No person
shall hold office unless he or she is a member of the
Association.

Section 2. Election: The Officers of the Assoc-
iation, except such Officers as may Ee appointed in accor-
dance with the provisions of Section 3 or Séction 5 of
this Article, shall be chosen annually'by the Board of
Directors and each shall hold said office until he or she
shall resign or shall be removed or otherwise disqualified

to serve, or until his or her successor shall be elected and

qualified.
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Section 3. Subordinate Officers: The Board of

Directors may appoint such other Officers as the business
of the Association may require, each of whom shall hold
office for such period, have such authority and perform
such duties as ;re provided in these By-Laws or as the
Board of Directors may from time to time determine.

Section 4. Removal and Resignation: Any Officer ~

may be removed, either with or without cause, by the vote
of a majority of all the Directors then in office at any
regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors at
which a quorum is present.

Any Officer may resign at any time by giving written
notice to the Board of Directors or to the President or to
the Secretary of the Association. Subject to the provisions
of Section 4 of this Article, any such resignation shall
take effect as of the date of the receipt of such notice
or at any later time specified herein; and, unless other-
wise specified therein, the exceptance of such resignation

shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 5. Vacancies: A vacancy in any office
because of death, resignation, removal, disgualification
Oor any other cause shall be filled in the manner pres-
cribed in these By-Laws for regular appointments to such

office.

Section 6. President: The President shall be

22,
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the chief executive officer of the Association and shall,
subject to the control of the Board of Directors, have
general supervision, direction and control of the business
and Officers of the Association. The President may, but
need not be, the Chairman of the Board of Directors. He
shall be an ex-officioc member of all standing committees,
if any, and shall have the general powers and duties of
management usually vested in the office of the President
of a corporation, and shall have such other powers and
duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or
these By-Laws. |

Section 7. Vice-President: In the absence or

disability of the President, the Vice-President shall
perform all the duties of the President, and when so acting,
shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all of the
restrictions upon the office of President. The Vice-
President shall have such other powers and perform such
other duties as frqm time to time may be prescribed for

him by the Board of Directors or the By-Laws.

Section 8., Secretary: The Secretary shall keep,

or cause to be kept, a book of Minutes at the principal
office or such other place as the Board of Directors may
order, of all meetings of Directors and members, with the
time and place of the holding of the same, whether regular
or special, and if special, how authorized, the notice

thereof given, the names of those present or represented
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at members' meetings and the proceedings thereof,

The Secretary shall keeé; or cause to be kept, at
the principal office, a membership register showing the
following: (1) The names and addresses of all members of the
Board of Directors; (2) The names of the members and their
addresses; (3) The property to which each membership relates;
(4)-The number of memberships held by each member; (5) The
number of votes represented to each member; (6) The Number
and date of membership certificates issued, if any; and
(7) The number and date of cahceiiation.of membership cer-
tificates, if any. a

The Secretary shall give, or cause to be given,
notice of all meetings of the members and of the Board of
Directorsirequired by the By-Laws or by law t; be given,
and he shall keep the seal of the Association in safe
custody, and shall have such other powers and perform such
other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors
or by these By-Laws.

Section 9. Treasurer: The Treasurer shall keep
and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate
and correct accounts of the Properties and business trans-
actions of the Association. The books of account shall at
all reasonable times be open to inspection by any Director,
member, or agent of a member.

The Treasurer shall deposit all moneys and other

valuables in the name and to the credit of the Association

24,
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with such depositories as may be designated by the Board

of Directors, shall disburse the funds of the Assoc-

iation as may be ordered by the Board of Directors, shall
render to the!President and Directors; whenever they request
it, an account of all of his transactions as Treasurer and
of the financial conditions of the Association, and shall
havé‘such other powers and perform such other duties as

may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or these
By-Laws.

ARTICLE VII

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 1. Record Date angd Closing Membership

Register: The Board of Directors may fix a time, in the
future, ﬂot exceeding fifteen (15) days precéeding the date
of any annual or special meeting of the members, as a record
date for the determination of the members entitled to notice
of and to vote at such meeting, and in such case only
members of record on the daté so fixed shall be entitled to
notice of and to vote at Such meeting, notwithstanding any
transfer of any membership on the books of the Association
after any record date so fixed. For the purpose of deter-
mining such record date, the Board of Directors may close
the books of the Association against transfer of membershiy

during the whole, or any part of any such period.

Section 2, Inspection of Corporate Records: The

membership register, the books of account, and minutes of
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meetings of the members' and directors' meetings shall be
open to the inspection of the Directcrs and members at
reasonable times from time to time and in the manner pro-
vided in the Corporations Code of the State of California
relating thereto.

- Section 3. Checks, Drafts, etc. All checks;

drafts, or other orders for payment of ﬁoney, notes or

other evidence of indebtedness, issued in the name of or
payable to the Assoéiation, shall be signed or endorsed
by such officer or officers and in such manner as, from
time to time,.shall be determined by resolution of the

Board of Directors.

Section 4. Contracts, etc., How Executed: The

Board of birectors, except as in these By—Lawg otherwise
provided, may authorize any officers or officer, agent or
agents, to enter into any contract or execute any instrument
in thename of and on behalf of the Association, and such
authority may bé general or confined to specific instances;
and unless so authorized by the Board of Directors, no
officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority
to bind the Association by any contract or engagement or to
Pledge its credit or to tender it liable for any purpose

or for any amount.

Section 5. Annual Report: The Board of Directors

shall cause a copy of an annual report, which shall contain,

without limitation, a balance sheet as of the last day of
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the Association's fiscal year and an operating statement
for the fiscal year treated by said report, to be sent to
each member of the Association not later than ninety {90)
days subsequent to the close of the fiscal or calendar
year of the Assﬁciation.

Section 6. Inspection of By-Laws: The Association

shail keep in its principal office for the transaction of
business the original or a copy of the By-Laws as amended,
certified by the Secretary, which shall be open to inspec-
tion by all of the members at all reasonable times:

Section 7. Annual Independent Audit: An annual

independent audit of the account or accounts of the Assoc-
iation or any management body shall be made, a copy of such
audit shall be available for the inspection of each member
Officer, or Director of the Association within thirty (30)
days of completion thereof, and a copy of such audit shall
be mailed to each member within ninety (90) days after the
end of each fiscal year.

Section 8. Singular Includes Plural: Wherever the

context of these By-Laws requires the same,the singular
shall include the plural and the masculine shall include

the feminine..

ARTICLE VIII

AMENDMEN TS

Section 1. Powers of Members: Amendment of these

27.
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By-Laws requires the vote or written consent of at least

a bare majorfity of a guorum but not more than a bhare
majority of the voting power of the Association other than
the vote of Declarant.

Section 2. Prohibited Actions: The Board of

Directors is prohibited from taking any of the following
actions, except with the vote or written assent of a
majority of voting power of the Association residing in
the members other than Declarant.
A. Enter into a contract with a third person
wherein the third person will furnish goods or
services for the Common Area or the Association
for a term longer than one year with the following
exception:
1) A management contract, the terms of
which have been approved in writing by the
Federal Housing Administration or Veteran's
Administration;
2) A contract with a public utility company
if the rates charged for the materials'or
services are regulated by the Public Utilities
Commission, provided, however, that the term
of the contract shall not exceed the shortest
term for which the supplier will contract at

the regulated price;
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3) Prepaid casualty and/or liability insurance
policies of not to exceed three years' dura-
tion, provided that the policy permits for
sho&t rate cancellation by the insured.:
B. Incurring aggregate expenditures for capital
improvements to the Common Area in any fiscal year
in excess of five percent {5%) of the budgeted
gross expense of the Association for that fiscal
year.
C. Selling during any fiscal year the property
of Association having an aggregate fair market
value greater than five percent (5%) of the budgeted
gross expense of the Association fo£ that fiscal
year,
D. Paying compensation to membérs, Directors, or
Officers of the Association for services performed
in the conduct of the Association's businessy,
provided, however, that the Board of Directors may.,
in its sole discretion, cause a member, Director,
or Officer to be reimbursed for expenses reasonably
incurred in carrying on the business of the Assoc-
iation.

Section 3. Record of Amendments: Whenever an

amendment or new By-Law is adopted, it shall be placed in

the books of By-Laws in the appropriate place. If any
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By-Law is repealed, the fact of repeal, with the date of
the meeting at which the repeal was enacted or written
assent was filed, shall be stated in said book.

Section 4. Conflicts: In the case of any conflict

between the Articles of Incorporation and these By-Laws,
the Articles shall control; and in the case of any conflict
between the Declaration and these By-Laws, the Declaration

shall control.i

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we, being all of the Directors
of the aforementioned Association, hereby assent to the
foregoing By-Laws and adopt them as the By-Laws of said

Association, and that we have heretc ascribed our names

this 7 4y day of  MARCH. /1979,

.'.".1-' J"&f Vﬁ ‘%&N Aren A A_S ,A“ S
e / . ,(
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA }
) 50,
)

COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA

On this 7 th day of MARCH 1979, before

me; a Notary Public in and for said State, personally appeared

HIROKAZU SATTO , JEFFREY KENDALL .
FUMATKT OTANT , KEN IWAGAKT ,
and KAREL WONG , known to me to be the Directors

of the Association described in and that executed the written
instrument and also known to me to be the persons who executed
the written instrumeht on behalf of the Association therein
named and acknowledged to me that such Association executed
the same By-Lawé by said persons. |

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand
and official seal.

UFF iCIAL SEAL ,4—4—}1 A—

TIM MESLOH :
Notary Putiic - Caifornis  § Notary Public in and for said

Frinciple Office in
Santa Clara County g State

My tommission expires Apell 14th !931
= D6

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify:

That I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of
CREEKSIDE OF SAN JOSE HOMLOWNERS' ASSOCIATION, a California
corporation.

That the foregoing By-Laws constitute the offic¢ial
By-Laws of said Association as duly adopted at a meeting of
the Board of Directors thereof held on the 7 th day of

MARCH , 197_9.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have hereunto subscribed my




7 th
..-‘ b

FUMAIKI OTANI

Secretary
(SEAL)
STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

) SS
COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA)
On this 7 th day of MARCH + 1979, before me,

a Notary Public in and for said State, personally appeared

FUMATKI QTANI , known to me to be the Secretary

of the Association described in and that executed that
certain Certification by Secretary and for the hereinabove.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and

official seal.

S —

TI¥ MESLOH
#ublic « Califgrnis

otary J .
§:',{',°."’é'..,‘;"'§:u,‘,',; : Notary Public in and for said
State

Hy enmmlldun lxplm Apru uth. lill '




